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we are 
Arif Habib
Limited

Arif Habib Group has been serving the investors for over four decades. Over the years the 
�rm has constantly evolved and adapted to changing times. As a premium brokerage and 
�nancial services �rm, AHL strives to build an environment that promotes teamwork, 
leadership and resilience, in order to better serve the ever-growing capital market.

During testing economic conditions, AHL has always endeavored to deliver consistent 
results to its trusting family of investors. It is only through consistency that we are able to 
maintain high levels of client satisfaction and have achieved industry wide recognition for 
our work. Being steadfast, determined and persistent are characteristics that strongly 
resonate with AHL’s code of conduct.



Highest ever 
Brokerage, Inv Banking 
Revenue  &  profitability 

Best Broker in Pakistan
FinanceAsia Country

Awards 2020

Roshan Digital Account
Largest market share in

Equities (38%)

Best Corporate
Finance House

CFA Society Pakistan 

Best Corporate & Ins. Adviser  
The Asset Triple A 

Country/Regional Awards ’20

Best
Equity Analyst

CFA Society Pakistan 

Best Transaction
Interloop Ltd. 

CFA Society Pakistan 

Best Bond Adviser
The Asset Triple A

Country/Regional Awards ’20  

Leader
in Gender diversity among

Stock Broking Firms 

Best Brokerage House 
Runners up

CFA Society Pakistan

Best Equity Adviser
The Asset Triple A

Country/Regional Awards ’20 

PKR 17 billion
Equity (IPOs) raising

85% market share  

100%
market share in 

Debt listing

50% growth
in new clientele 
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Ms. Sharmin Shahid Non-executive Director 
Ms. Nida Ahsan Non-executive Director 
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Mr. Mohsin Madni Non-executive Director

Audit Committee
Dr. Muhammad Sohail Salat Chairman 
Mr. Haroon Usman Member 
Mr. Mohsin Madni Member
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Mr. Haroon Usman    Member
Mr. Muhammad Shahid Ali Habib  Member
Ms. Nida Ahsan     Member
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Credit Rating
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Management Rating
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Advocate High Court

Company 

06 Passion for Performance



information
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Askari Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
Bank Al Habib Limited
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Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
JS Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
Sindh Bank Limited
Soneri Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Summit Bank Limited
The Bank of Khyber
The Bank of Punjab
United Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited

Registrar & Share Transfer Office
Share Registrar Department
Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi-74400
Tel: Customer Support Services:
0800-CDCPL (23275)
Fax: (92-21) 34326053
Email: info@cdcpak.com
Website: www.cdcpakistan.com

Registered Office
Arif Habib Centre
23, M.T. Khan Road Karachi-74000
UAN: (92-21) 111-245-111
Fax No: (92-21) 32416072; 32429653
E-mail: info@arifhabibltd.com
Company website: www.arifhabibltd.com
Online Trade: www.ahletrade.com
Branch Reg. No: BOA-050/01

Lahore Branch
Office Nos. G-05 & G-06, Ground Floor, LSE Plaza 
19, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Iqbal, Lahore
Tel: +92 (42) 3631 3710, +92 (42) 3631 3700-1,
       +92 (42) 3631 3702,+92 (42) 3631 3703

Islamabad Branch
Office No. 506, 5th Floor, ISE Towers, Jinnah 
Avenue, Islamabad
Tel: +92 (51) 2894505 – 06

Peshawar Branch
Shops No. F13, F14, F15, F16, F17, 1st Floor, The 
Mall Tower, Peshawar Cantt.
Tel: +92 91 5253910-13

Rawalpindi Branch
Office No. F-15, 1st Floor, Rizwan Arcade, Adamjee 
Road, Saddar, Rawalpindi
Tel: +92 (51) 5120428-29, +92 (51) 5563476-78

Faisalabad Branch
Office No. 04, 3rd Floor Legacy Tower, Kohinoor City, 
Faisalabad.
Tel: +92 41 8531010-3

Multan Branch
Office No.16-18,1st Floor, Khan Center, Abdali Road, 
Near SP Chowk, Multan
Tel:  +92 61 4514413    
        + 92 61 4514412
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Mission

Our vision is to be the 
most Preferred and 
Respected Financial 
Institution, renowned 
for our expertise in 
Securities Brokerage 
and Investment 
Banking services.

Vision
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Mission
Our mission is to create 

value for our stakeholders 
by providing outstanding 

securities brokerage 
services and investment 
banking solutions to our 
customers. We strive to 

build an environment that 
encourages teamwork at 
the workplace to deliver 
superior products and 

services and to serve the 
development of our capital 

market.

Vision
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CODE OF
CONDUCT

OUR
VALUES

Arif Habib Limited strongly 
believes in running its 
business progressively
without compromising on the 
best ethical standards as 
guided by the

“Code of Ethics and 
Business Practices”.

               INTERGRITY

We conduct ourselves with uncompromising 
integrity and honesty as individuals, as teams, 
and as a Company

               Efficiency

We pride ourselves on our efficiency which 
plays a major role in identifying
and capitalizing opportunities in all aspects of 
our businesses and operations

              Social Responsibility

We hold sound governance values and a 
responsible approach to social and 
environmental risks which begins with our 
people and communities

                     Credibility

We strive to earn enduring credibility which we 
believe is essential to long-term business 
relationships

11Arif Habib Limited Annual Report 2021
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-  Strive continuously to maximize 
value for our clients and 
stakeholders.

-  Control credit, market and 
operational risks to mitigate 
overall risk.

-  Provide proactive and effective 
services to our clients.

-  Expand the range of our 
products and services.

-  Continue exercising high level of 
ethical standards.

Arif Habib Limited (AHL) is a firm 
believer in sustainable development. 
At AHL, we pride ourselves in 
contributing to the betterment of the 
lives of our communities and the 
people of Pakistan. Corporate 
philanthropy and development are 
means to this, which allows us to give 
back to the people around us. 

As a responsible member of the 
business society, we are actively 
working with local bodies and 
authorities to find ways in which we 
can help with various social programs 
and development projects.

CORPORATE
STRATEGY

Corporate Social 
Responsibility

PKR 5,000,000: Habib University 
Foundation (HUF): Is a not-for-profit 
organization which supports educational 
initiatives, research and innovation. The 
Foundation believes that appropriate 
nurturing of human potential is essential for 
the creation of a socially and morally 
responsible society hence, the Foundation 
develops and supports a diverse portfolio of 
programs which aim at establishing 
dynamic learning spaces. Contribution to 
Habib University allows them to provide 
access to world class education to a large 
portion of students who are ready for higher 
education, but due to comprised 
socio-economic backgrounds are unable to 
do so. 

Social 
Development
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THE COMPANY HAS ALSO 
CONTRIBUTED TO THE 
EXCHEQUER BY PAYING 
AN AMOUNT OF PKR 
227,530,616 IN TERMS OF 
DIRECT AND INDIRECT 
TAXES DURING THE 
YEAR.

PKR 150,000: 17th Annual Excellence Awards 
Ceremony: Organized by CFA Association of 
Pakistan, the event recognized the excellence 
achieved by financial institutions and 
professionals in different categories.

Corporate
Development

15Arif Habib Limited Annual Report 2021



AWARDS & RECOGNITION

BEST BOND ADVISER
PAKISTAN

THE ASSET 
ASIAN AWARDS

ARIF HABIB

BEST CORPORATE AND
INSTITUTIONAL ADVISIER -

DOMESTIC PAKISTAN

THE ASSET 
ASIAN AWARDS

ARIF HABIB

BEST EQUITY ADVISER
PAKISTAN

THE ASSET 
ASIAN AWARDS

ARIF HABIB
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17th Annual Excellence Awards

Arif Habib Limited
Best Corporate Finance House

of the Year 2019 (Equity - NBFC)

This award is presented by CFA Society Pakistan
at the 17th Annual Excellence Awards Ceremony

Friday, 2nd October 2020
Karachi

WINNER

17Arif Habib Limited Annual Report 2021

17th Annual Excellence Awards

Tahir Abbas
Arif Habib Limited

Best Equity Analyst of the Year FY2020

This award is presented by CFA Society Pakistan
at the 17th Annual Excellence Awards Ceremony

Friday, 2nd October 2020
Karachi

WINNER

17th Annual Excellence Awards

Arif Habib Limited

Best Transaction of the Year 2019

This award is presented by CFA Society Pakistan
at the 17th Annual Excellence Awards Ceremony

Friday, 2nd October 2020
Karachi

WINNER
17th Annual Excellence Awards

Arif Habib Limited

Best Equity Brokerage House
of the Year 2019

This award is presented by CFA Society Pakistan
at the 17th Annual Excellence Awards Ceremony

Friday, 2nd October 2020
Karachi

RUNNER-UP



DIRECTORS’ 
PROFILES

Zafar Alam 

With decades of experience in financial 
markets, Zafar Alam brings a unique blend of 
global leadership, innovative vision and 
in-depth financial knowledge. As a business 
leader in investment banking encompassing 
Origination, Trading, Sales and Asset 
Management he has lead teams of over 400 
people and delivered revenues of over a billion 
dollars. He has been a key member of the Top 
Executive Group - TEG at ABN AMRO and 
RBS Bank. 
Holding a master’s degree in Nuclear Physics, 
Zafar joined ABN AMRO as Investment 
Manager in Dubai. In 1988 he moved to Hong 
Kong as Head of ABN AMRO Securities & 
Finance Co., focusing on fixed income trading 
and sales. In 1990 he started the brokerage 
and origination business for Asian equities. In 
1995, he was asked by the bank’s senior 
leadership to move to Singapore, to lead and 
build the local markets business, as Head of 
Local Markets and Credit Trading.

Chairman & Independent Director

As a passionate innovator, Zafar Alam had the vision to 
enter into Fixed Income and Derivatives markets. The 
bank was only active in FX sphere however his input 
gave the direction to add Fixed Income and Derivatives 
as the market was set to take off in the aftermath of the 
Asian crisis. The activities included origination, trading 
and sales in thirteen Asian countries.
In 2002, he was appointed Managing Director and 
moved to London as Global Head of Emerging Markets 
responsible for origination, trading and sales, before 
taking on his new role in Equities. 
As Global Head of Equity Derivatives Sales in the 
enlarged RBS Global Banking & Markets Group. In this 
role Zafar was responsible for combining the successful 
Private Investor Products (PIP) and 
Institutional/Corporate business of ABN AMRO and 
RBS. He was responsible for developing, manufacturing 
and distributing structured products consisting of 
multi-assets. In one year, he turned a USD 150 million 
business into a USD 1 billion business. 
In 2010, he become Head of Equities and Structured 
Retail Sales for Middle East and Africa, based in Dubai 
focused on building an Equities platform. He also 
managed the Structured Equities Solution team which 
provided equity financing with an overlay of derivative 
solutions.
Zafar Alam has always had a strong belief in 
technology and been a visionary for a digital future. 
Zafar Alam is a chairman and founder of ELIGIBLE.ai, 
an award winning Fin-Tech company in the UK loan 
servicing market. Eligible is a digital servicing solution 
using behavioral segmentation to personalise every 
consumer’s journey. Allowing financial institutions to 
instantly educate, empower and retain their customer 
base. The Fin-Tech services over GBP 15 billion in 
mortgages making it the 5th largest consumer 
database in the UK. 
With the combination of his extensive experience 
across sectors and markets, Zafar Alam has also been 
entrusted as a Partner at Silver Tree HK LTD., an asset 
management fund based in Hong Kong with over USD 
250 million assets under management (AUM).
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Muhammad Shahid Ali Habib 

Mr. Shahid Ali Habib carries a proven track record 
of establishing successful business organizations 
and turning around ventures into vibrant units. He 
has over 23 years of experience in the fields of 
Securities Brokerage, Banking, Asset 
Management, Corporate Finance and Investment 
Banking. He has served in leading positions at top 
local and international institutions.

Shahid has also served as Executive Director and 
Chairman of a few local equity brokerage and financial 
services institutions. He has also worked at leading banks 
in Saudi Arabia and Canada. Shahid also served the 
Karachi Stock Exchange as member of various 
committees including Development and Trading Affairs 
Committee, New Product Committee, Arbitration 
Committee and Companies Affairs and Corporate 
Governance Committee.

As AHL’s Chief Executive, Shahid oversees all operation 
all operation of the firm including Equity Brokerage and 
Investment Banking. He has been involved in numerous 
transitions in Pakistan’s equity market over the years. He 
was the Domestic Team Leader of Pakistan ‘Largest 
equity market transaction of HBL Secondary offering 
worth $ 1.02 bn and others significant transactions 
including UBL secondary offering of @ 388 mn and Engro 
Fertilizers offering of @ 190 mn.

He holds MBA in Finance from the Institute of Business & 
Administration (IBA) and has a Certification in Finance 
from London School of Economics (LSE) as well as a 
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science from FAST ICS. 
He has also attended various international professional 
development course in the fields of finance, technology 
and energy.

Mr. Haroon Usman is a Commerce Graduate and 
a Fellow Member of the Institute of Cost and 
Management Accountants of Pakistan. He has 
over 50 years’ experience in the fields of 
commerce, finance and industry. He has served a 
number of local and foreign organizations of 
repute in different executive positions related to 
accounts, finance, general management and 
consultancy, both in Pakistan and abroad.

Haroon serves as member of the Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee and as a member of the Audit 
Committee of the Company.

Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
Haroon Usman
Non - executive Director 
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Muhammad Sohail Salat 

Dr. Muhammad Sohail Salat is a qualified and 
highly reputed Pediatrician and Neonatologist who 
has a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of 
Surgery from Dow Medical College Karachi. He has 
a certification in General Pediatrics from United 
States of America and Fellowship in Neonatology, 
holding a Foreign Medical Graduate Examination in 
Medicine from the US and is licensed from Pakistan 
Medical and Dental College. He completed his 
Residency in Pediatrics from Maimonides Medical 
Center and Interfaith Medical Center in New York 
and Fellowship in Neonatal Perinatal Medicine from 
Westchester Medical Center, New York Medical 
College, USA. 

Sohail is associated with the Pakistan's top medical 
health care services provider, The Aga Khan 
University Hospital (AKUH) Karachi (Department of 
Pediatrics and Child Health) and is currently 
working as an Associate Professor. He holds 
director post in education, clinical areas and also 
chaired various administration posts in AKUH. He 
was previously associated with Ziauddin Medical 
University, Karachi. 

Sohail is regarded as an expert in the fields of 
Pediatrics, Child Health and Neonatal Perinatal 
Medicine and has had numerous publications on 
those subjects and presented his work at various 
leading local and international conferences. He is 
actively involved in Pakistan Pediatric Association 
(PPA) a non-political organization for the better care 
of Pediatric patients in Pakistan. He is currently 
associated with PPA including Advisor to 
Neonatology group of PPA and currently holds the 
post of Treasurer of Pakistan Pediatrics Association 
(Center) and general secretary Pakistan Society of 
Inherited Metabolic disorders (PSIMD).

Mr. Mohsin Madni is the Chief Financial 
Officer of Arif Habib Corporation Limited. 
His role encompasses a wide range of 
matters ranging from finance and taxation. 
Mr. Madni is an Associate Member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan (ICAP) and holds a Master’s 
Degree in Economics & Finance. He is a 
member of Pakistan Institute of Public 
Finance Accountants (PIPFA) and Institute 
for Internal Controls, USA. Mr. Madni 
completed his Articleship from KPMG 
Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
where he gained experience of diverse 
sectors serving clients spanning the 
Financial, Manufacturing, Trading and 
Services industries.

Independent Director 
Mohsin Madni 
Non - executive Director 
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Sharmin Shahid 

Ms. Sharmin Shahid has over 20 years of 
experience in the field of Securities Brokerage 
and Portfolio Management. She was awarded 
the top position in her Bachelor’s Degree in 
Commerce and has also participated in the 
Directors’ Training Program. She has been 
awarded the Top 25 Companies Award on 
behalf of AHL for several years. 

Sharmin actively participates in welfare 
activities and remains one of the trustees of 
Memon Health and Education Foundation 
(MHEF). Under her patronage & direction AHL 
has continued to excel and become a leading 
name in the industry.

Ms. Nida Ahsan is a Commerce Graduate. 
She represents the Arif Habib family who are 
the majority owners of the Arif Habib Group 
and have made significant contributions in the 
development of Securities Market in Pakistan. 

She has over 17 years’ experience of investing 
in listed securities including a number of first 
and second tier stocks.

Non - executive Director 

Nida Ahsan
Non - Executive Director 
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Review Report by the Chairman on the overall 
performance of Board and effectiveness of the 
role played by the Board in achieving the 
Company’s objectives: 
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Arif Habib 
Limited (“AHL”) has performed their duties 
diligently in upholding the best interest of 
shareholders’ of the Company and has managed 
the affairs of the Company in an effective and 
efficient manner. The Board has exercised its 
powers and has performed its duties as stated in 
the repealed Companies Act 2017 and the Code 
of Corporate Governance (“the Code”) contained 
in the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange 
(the Rule Book) where the Company is listed. 
The Board during the year ended 30 June 2021 
played an effective role in managing the affairs of 
the Company and achieving its objectives in the 
following manner; 

• The Board has ensured that there is adequate 
representation of non-executive and independent 
directors on the Board and its committees as required 
under the Code and that members of the Board and its 
respective committees has adequate skill experience 
and knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company; 

• The Board has formed an Audit and Human Resource 
and Remuneration Committee and has approved their 
respective terms of references and has assigned 
adequate resources so that the committees perform 
their responsibilities diligently; 

• The Board has developed and put in place the rigorous 
mechanism for an annual evaluation of its own 
performance and that of its committees and individual 
directors. The findings of the annual evaluation are 
assessed and re-evaluated by the Board periodically; 

• The Board has ensured that the directors are provided 
with orientation courses to enable them to perform their 
duties in an effective manner and that the five directors 
on the Board have already taken certification under the 
Directors Training Program (DTP), one director will 
complete his DTP program during FY22 and the 
remaining directors meet the qualification and 
experience criteria of the Code; 

• The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board 
and that of its committee were held with the requisite 
quorum, all the decision making were taken through 
Board resolution and that the minutes of all the 
meetings (including committees) are appropriately 
recorded and maintained; 

• The Board has developed a code of conduct setting 
forth the professional standards and corporate values 
adhered through the Company and has developed 
significant policies for smooth functioning; 

• The Board has actively participated in strategic 
planning process enterprise risk management system, 
policy development, and financial structure, monitoring 
and approval;

• All the significant issues throughout the year were 
presented before the Board or its committees to 
strengthen and formalize the corporate decision 
making process and particularly all the related party 
transactions executed by the Company were approved 
by the Board on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee;

• The Board has ensured that the adequate system of 
internal control is in place and its regular assessment 
through self-assessment mechanism and /or internal 
audit activities; 

• The Board has prepared and approved the director’s 
report and has ensured that the directors report is 
published with the quarterly and annual financial 
statement of the Company and the content of the 
director’s report are in accordance with the requirement 
of applicable laws and regulation; 

• The Board has ensured the hiring, evaluation and 
compensation of the Chief Executive and other key 
executives including Chief Financial Officer, Company 
Secretary, and Head of Internal Audit; 

• The Board has ensured that adequate information is 
shared among its members in a timely manner and the 
Board members are kept abreast of developments 
between meetings; and 

• The Board has exercised its powers in light of the 
power assigned to the Board in accordance with the 
relevant laws and regulation applicable on the 
Company and the Board has always prioritized the 
Compliance with all the applicable laws and regulation 
in terms of their conduct as directors and exercising 
their powers and decision making. 

• The board continues to explore opportunities to deploy 
innovative technologies into the financial markets. 
Emerging Fintechs will allow us to reduce the 
cost/income ratios of our products and services – 
particularly in retail markets. Mirroring the innovation 
seen around the world; Pakistan can provide greater 
accessibility for retail investors - while the self-serve 
nature of these journeys provides attractive unit 
economics for the product and service providers.

CHAIRMAN’S
REVIEW
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The evaluation of the Board’s performance is 
assessed based on those key areas where the 
Board requires clarity in order to provide high 
level oversight, including the strategic process; 
key business drivers and performing milestones, 
the global economic environment and 
competitive context in which the Company 
operates; the risk faced by the Company’s 
business; Board dynamics; capability and 
information flows. Based on the aforementioned, 
it can reasonably be stated that the Board of 
AHL has played a key role in ensuring that the 
Company objectives’ are not only achieved, but 
exceeded expectations through a joint effort with 
the management team and guidance and 
oversight by the Board and its members. 

Zafar Alam 
Chairman 
July 30, 2021
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Dear All,

Year under review has been an extraordinary year in so many ways.  While we are grateful for much in the 
Financial year 2021, We would like to first acknowledge the pain and tragedy that the Covid pandemic has 
inflicted on some of our clients, colleagues, and partners. By the grace of Allah, Pakistan has so far been 
amongst those few countries which have fared better but we must remain cautious of the risks and cognizant 
of the devastation seen in many countries, caused by the pandemic. 

We thank all our clients for entrusting us with the highest ever brokerage revenue, highest ever 
Investment banking revenue, and highest core profitability. We thank all our colleagues for their hard 
work and commitment while balancing the health and safety of their families. We thank all our board 
members for helping and guiding us to make the right decisions for the company. We also thank the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Pakistan Stock Exchange for actively working 
on market reforms and helped improving market volumes and IPO activity. Finally, We congratulate all 
our shareholders for getting a return of 169% compared to a market return of 38% in FY21 (July 2020 - 
June 2021).

On the economic side, Pakistan has seen a strong rebound in FY2021. The National Command Operation 
Centre’s (NCOC) efforts in imposing smart lockdowns in major population centers across Pakistan helped 
stage the recovery as acknowledged by the World Bank.  Due to the collective efforts of the government and 
the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), the economic recovery has been very robust in FY21 and achieved a GDP 
growth rate of 3.9%. Factories, especially those related to the textile sector, are running near full capacities and 
creating employment, businesses are thriving as we adapt to the new normal. A special mention has to go to 
the ingenuity of the SBP in taking charge of the monetary policy at the right time and restoring confidence 
among the business community along with the introduction of the Temporary Economic Relief Facility (TERF) 
which mobilized human and financial capital to push forward expansion plans. 

Credit too must go to the government for the several initiatives taken in reviving an ailing economy. Public Sector 
Development Programme (PSDP) played a pivotal role with a historic 106% utilization level, which is further 
aided by the introduction of the Pakistan Housing Scheme which will be a tailwind for GDP growth.  The 
introduction of Roshan Digital Accounts (RDA) enabled the Pakistani diaspora to stay connected with the nation 
and generate FX support. The SBP is playing a central role here in terms of facilitating both the RDA and 
Housing Scheme initiatives, where the latter is expected to set the foundations for a housing mortgage market 
that is currently non-existent in Pakistan (0.5% of GDP as compared to ~4% for South Asia). Report
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Having successfully navigated through a challenging period Pakistan is setting new records in terms of historic 
high FX reserves (USD 24.4 billion), record remittances (USD 29.4 billion), record exports (USD 25.6 billion), 
lowest CAD in 10yrs (USD 1.9 billion), record LSMI output growth (+14.6% YoY), record auto loans (PKR 308 
billion), record cement sales (57.4 million tons) as well as the highest ever electricity generation (130,223 GWh). 
This all solidifies a turnaround story of Pakistan and are the underpinnings for the KSE100 to be trading at 
multi-year highs in terms of performance, average daily traded value, and volumes. 

Stock Market Performance: A year of hope and optimism

Unlike the performance witnessed in FY19 and FY20, the outgoing FY21 has been stellar with gains of +38%. 
The course of recovery was initially set by entering into an IMF program and a conscious decision by the SBP 
to slash interest rates. Besides monetary policy easing and declining inflation, stable PKR parity vis-à-vis USD 
played a crucial role in Pakistan’s economic recovery and stock market performance.

KSE100 index added a total of 12,952pts during FY21. Due to improving business conditions, investor 
confidence was restored which resulted in average traded volumes at the bourse more than doubling from 196 
mn shares in FY20 to 528 mn shares in FY21 (2.6x YoY). Similarly, average traded value both in PKR and USD 
tripled from PKR 10.3 trillion in FY20 to PKR 27.8 trillion in FY21, and USD 65.5 million to USD 173.3 million in 
FY21. 
Post attainment of MSCI Emerging Market status, foreigners have remained net sellers. FY21 was no different, 
with foreigners net selling USD 387 million worth of equities. The selling was largely observed in E&P (USD 90 
million), Banks (USD 114 million), and Other Sectors (USD 135 million). Besides the foreign selling, amongst 
local investors, Banks, Brokers, and Insurance Companies sold USD 95 million, USD 32 million, and 10 million 
respectively aggregating a sum of USD 137 million. The selling of USD 524 million was mainly absorbed by 
Individuals, Corporates, and Other Organizations (particularly government pension funds), who invested USD 
332 million, USD 138 million, and USD 45 million respectively, aggregating to USD 515 million. 4QFY21 saw 
the Insurance Sector as the major seller amongst locals with an outflow of USD 63 million aided by foreigners 
who net sold USD 93 million worth of stocks. The emergence of individuals as the largest net buyers of Pakistan 
equities reflects the ample domestic liquidity and confidence in Pakistan’s turnaround.  

In terms of performance, in line with global markets Tech led with gains of +312%, followed by Refinery +214%, 
Synthetic +163%, Engineering +109%, and Glass & Ceramics +99%. This was markedly different from the top 
5 sectors contributing to Index performance in FY20, which were Leather +110%, Textile +79%, Technology 
+66%, Pharmaceuticals +57%, and Cement +45%. Conventional plays such as E&P (+9%) and Banks (+32%) 
remained muted in FY21. During FY21, the ascent of 12,952pts in the benchmark Index was largely contributed 
by 5 sectors. These include Technology (+2489pts), Cement (+2064pts), Banks (+2059pts), Fertilizer (+822pts) 
and Textile (+745pts). New sectors assuming leadership reflect the broadening and deepening of the PSX 
board and Pakistani economy keeping us in line with trends seen in the post-pandemic world. 

800.00

(million shares)

700.00

600.00

500.00

400.00

300.00

200.00

100.00

32,000

34,000

36,000

38,000

40,000

42,000

44,000

46,000

48,000

50,000

-

Ju
l-2

0

A
ug

-2
0

S
ep

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
ov

-2
0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

Fe
b-

21

M
ar

-2
1

A
pr

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
n-

21

KSE100 - Volume (RHS) KSE100-Index

28 Passion for Performance



Highest participation in Roshan Digital Account

Roshan Digital Account has proven to be a successful solution for Pakistan’s worker remittances. More than just 
attracting remittances for FX building, this initiative enables Pakistani expatriates to participate in Pakistan’s 
recovery through investments in various asset classes. Previously such funds would not come through formal 
channels and be mainly invested in real estate, however, the government has now offered new avenues such 
as Naya Pakistan Certificate and investment in the stock market besides traditional real estate investment 
vehicles. As this channel matures, the SBP is exerting efforts through commercial banks to offer financial 
products such as auto purchases through RDA. 

AHL is proud to be at the forefront of this initiative by PM Imran Khan, spearheaded by Dr. Reza Baqir of the 
SBP. So far 182,000 RDAs were set up (till June end) contributed USD 1.6 billion in investment flows to 
Pakistan. The bulk of RDAs are focused on Naya Pakistan Certificates and 5,249 for equity investments. AHL 
has set up a dedicated help desk to provide customer support to RDA clients and is increasing its headcount to 
enhance the RDA clientele. AHL,  by the grace of Almighty, has achieved an average market share of around 
38% of the Roshan Digital Accounts during the year.  

Gender Diversity

Women’s inclusion in the workforce is not only important from a social, ethical, and cultural standpoint but 
maintaining an equal opportunity workspace helps set the strategic direction of the organization as well. AHL 
has made gender diversity and inclusion of women in the workforce an important tenet of its strategy and is 
taking important steps in this regard to identify, nurture and develop talent. FY21 has seen AHL take a giant leap 
with the inclusion of 30 women in the workforce which is 50% of total new hires.
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Financial Performance

We are pleased to share with you that the financial performance of AHL for FY21 has been phenomenal across 
the board. Your company has achieved the highest ever brokerage revenue, highest investment banking 
revenue, and highest core profitability and net profitability. The combined operating revenue from brokerage and 
advisory (excluding Dividend Income) has grown by +188% YoY while posting Rs. 898.8 million in FY21 as 
against Rs. 478.7 million in FY20. 

FY21 saw the highest number of capital raising transactions since 2010 and the highest equity raising for 14 
years. The total capital raised during FY21 is Rs. 56 billion out of which equity raising is Rs. 20 billion. In addition, 
25 listed companies went for right issuance which raised another Rs. 45 billion. 

The total revenue (Operating and Non-operating Income) has tripled over the year from Rs. 706.7 million in 
FY20 to Rs. 3,048 million in FY21. This is mainly due to capital gain on equity securities at FVTPL (Fair Value 
Through Profit / Loss), which has recorded at Rs. 1,311.4 million against realizing a loss of Rs. 273.3 million in 
FY20. 

Eyeing this very growth, when the economy was facing the challenge of COVID, AHL used this threat as an 
opportunity to grow its footprint in the north of the country and invest further in technology and our workforce. 
This saw an increase in administrative and operating expenses from Rs. 344 million to Rs. 638 million (+85% 
YoY). 

Brokerage Operations

Broking operations have posted a total revenue of Rs. 706 million in FY21, which is +118% when compared 
with FY20. Healthy growth in our brokerage revenues is not only because of staggering growth in traded 
volumes but also due to our higher penetration in the growing retail and online market. Though we had to put in 
place a WFH (Work From Home) policy, we worked harder to realize this historic growth in revenues. We have 
added more traders in our team to service institutional and HNWI clients resulting in increasing our market 
share. 

Our institutional business grew by +83% YoY, individuals and online segments posted +200% growth in the 
outgoing year. Our IT department has played a key role in making a robust and uninterrupted working 
environment to achieving a mammoth growth in brokerage revenue. 

This year we have opened branches in Rawalpindi, Faisalabad and Multan taking the total number of branches 
to 6. We have recorded outstanding growth in brokerage revenue from Lahore (164%), Islamabad (235%) and 
Peshawar (161%) branches. We will continue to open more branches in other cities as well to achieve our 
objective of increasing awareness of Pakistan capital market opportunities amongst the masses. The Retail and 
Online teams have performed exceptionally well in this drive. We will also give credit to our compliance team 
who are diligently working on KYC/AML of our increasing number of account openings. We also acknowledge 
the untiring efforts of our settlement department for swiftly handling the settlements of the highest ever trades 
in the history of AHL without any delay whatsoever.

Our money market desk also added to the growth in broking revenues by posting Rs. 87 million (+54% YoY) 
which is also the highest since we started this operation in 2013. We have added more traders in our money 
market and FX department resulting in substantially increasing our market share. 

By the grace of Almighty, AHL won ‘Best Broker in Pakistan’ in FinanceAsia’s Country Awards for 2021.  

Growing Footprint – the digital way forward

National Clearing Company Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) declares 256,954 Unique Identification Numbers 
(UINs) as of June 30, 2021. This number is a drop in the ocean when compared with Pakistan’s total population. 
AHL believes the number of UINs can be increased in multiples for which technology will play an important role. 
AHL is constantly working to expand its outreach to customers in the north and we have set up 3 new branches 
in FY21. We have opened 3,932 new accounts which are 330% higher than last year with nearly 70% of this 
being online. In addition, we have developed a new mobile application for clients which is a major upgrade from 
the previous one and scores high on customer satisfaction, user-friendliness, and access to information. 
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Investment Banking Operations

Our investment banking operations posted a total revenue of Rs. 672 million, which is +333% against FY20. The 
investment banking revenues include advisory on record number of equity IPOs, listed and privately placed 
TFCs and Sukuks, Mergers & Acquisitions, Private Equity Placements, advisory and underwriting of equity 
raising through Right shares. FY21 saw 8 equity listings on the exchange raising a total of Rs. 20 billion. We are 
pleased to share with you that your company remained the market leader with enlisting 6 companies and 
raising a total of Rs. 17 billion (85% market share). AHL also advised the raising/listing of two debt issues to the 
tune of Rs. 36 billion.  While the wave of optimism continues, we foresee scores of new listings at the bourse 
and are confident that AHL will maintain its market leader position and bring more IPOs to market. 

Our consistent performance in the area of investment banking division was recognized by The Asset Triple A 
Sustainable Capital Markets Country & Regional Awards 2020 and we won awards in 3 categories, namely 
Best Corporate and Institutional Adviser – Domestic, Best Equity Adviser, and Best Bond Adviser. Your 
company has created history by winning “Best Corporate Finance House (Equities & Advisory)” for the 7th 
consecutive year (2014-2020) from CFA Society Pakistan, a feat that no one has achieved yet. Further AHL has 
also won the Best transaction of the Year award for IPO of Interloop from CFA Society Pakistan. 

The Management foresees the increased activity on account of new equity/debt listings and also on the areas 
of Mergers and Acquisitions and private equity investments. We are confident to achieve the larger share by 
providing excellent services to our clients. 

TPL Trakker Limited Agha Steel Limited Panther Tyres Limited Service Global Footwear

66.8 Million Shares – 
PKR 802 Million

TPLT is engaged in 
providing technology 
solutions, focused on 

connected car, data and 
location services, and 

industrial IoT technologies

AGHA is the first and only 
electric arc furnace facility in 
the country producing high 
quality steel bars, wire rods 

and billets

120 Million Shares -
PKR 3.84 Billion

Panther is the leading player 
in tyres and tubes industry. 
PTL has also ventured into 

the trading business of 
automobile spare parts    

and lubricants

40 Million Shares -
PKR 2.63 Billion

SGF is involved in the 
manufacturing, sale, 

marketing, import and  
export of footwear, leather 

and allied products

40.9 Million Shares – 
PKR 2.18 Billion

IPO IPO IPO IPO

Pakistan Aluminum 
Beverage Cans Limited

Engro Polymer and 
Chemicals Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited K- Electric

93.9 Million Shares - 
PKR 4.6 Billion

PABC is the only aluminum 
beverage cans 

manufacturer in Pakistan. It 
supplies to all major 

carbonated drinks bottlers 
including PepsiCo and 

Coca Cola bottlers

EPCL, subsidiary of 
ENGRO, manufactures, 

markets and sells Poly Vinyl 
Chloride (PVC), Vinyl 

Chloride Monomer (VCM), 
Caustic soda and other 

related chemicals

300 mn Shares - 
PKR 3 Billion

BAFL issued a TFC in 
denominations of PKR 

5,000, offering a coupon  
rate of 9.03% p.a. to hedge 

the issuer’s fixed rate   
assets with fixed rate 

liabilities

PKR 11 Billion

K-Electric  raised PKR 25  
billion by way of 

rated,secured Diminishing 
Musharaka Sukuk certificate  
to fund routine capex, opex 

requirements.

PKR 25 Billion

Offer for Sale Convertible Pref. Shares Term Finance Certificate Sukuk
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Awards and Recognition

We immense pride in announcing that the company’s performance has been recognized by internationally 
renowned organizations such as The Asset Triple A as well as from FinanceAsia in FY21. This year AHL won 
following awards:

1. Best Broker in Pakistan - FinanceAsia Country Awards 2020
2. Best Corporate & Institutional Adviser - The Asset Triple A Country & Regional Awards 2020
3. Best Equity Adviser - The Asset Triple A Country & Regional Awards 2020
4. Best Bond Adviser - The Asset Triple A Country & Regional Awards 2020
5. Best Corporate Finance House of the Year 2019 - CFA Society Pakistan
6. Best Equity Brokerage House of the Year 2019 - CFA Society Pakistan
7. Best Equity Analyst of the Year 2020 – CFA Society Pakistan
8. Best Transaction of the Year 2019 - CFA Society Pakistan

Credit Rating 

The Company has been re-assigned entity ratings of ‘AA-/A-1’ (Double A Minus/A-One) by JCR-VIS Credit 
Rating Company Ltd. (JCR-VIS). The outlook on the assigned ratings is ‘Stable’. This certification has further 
underscored the management’s vision for continuous growth and is expected to provide further confidence to 
the company’s clientele with regards to the credibility and stability of the brand “Arif Habib”.

Management Rating 

The Company has been assigned a management rating of BMR1 by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited 
(PACRA). The outlook on the assigned ratings is ‘Stable’. This certification has endorsed the Company’s 
capability in upholding strong control and governance framework, continuing update of client servicing tools, 
and careful monitoring of risks mainly liquidity and conflict of interest emanating from investment activities.

Risk Management

Risks are unavoidable in our business and include liquidity, market, credit, operational, legal, regulatory, and 
reputational risks. AHL’s risk management governance starts with our Board, which plays an integral role in 
reviewing and approving risk management policies and practices.

Our risk management framework and systems are longstanding, standardized, and very robust. We believe that 
effective risk management is of primary importance to the success of the Company. Accordingly, we have 
initiated comprehensive risk management processes through which we monitor, evaluate and manage the risks 
we assume in conducting our activities. A rigorous framework of limits is applied to control risk across multiple 
transactions, products, businesses, and markets in which we deal. This includes setting credit and market risk 
limits at a variety of levels and monitoring these limits regularly.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Your Company continued its contribution to society and the business community as a socially responsible 
organization through numerous philanthropic activities. AHL is committed to the fulfillment of its Corporate 
Social Responsibility and continues its involvement in projects focusing on healthcare, education, environment, 
and community welfare. We aim to continue our involvement and contribution to such noble causes in the future 
as well.

The details of the contribution made by the Company are presented on Page No. 16.

Code of Corporate Governance

The Board and Management of the Company are committed to ensuring that requirements of the Code of 
Corporate Governance are fully met. The Company has adopted strong Corporate Governance practices with 
an aim to enhance the accuracy, comprehensiveness and transparency of financial and non-financial 
information. 
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The Directors are pleased to report that:

a. The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of affairs, the 
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

b. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the 
preparation of financial statements;

e. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;

f. There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern;

g. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the 
listing regulations;

h. The Company has on account of statutory payment of taxes, duties, levies and charges has no outstanding 
liability as at the balance sheet date;

i. There are no transactions entered into by the broker during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in 
violation of any securities market laws;

j. The Company has paid amount of Rs. 7,788,000 in the Provident Fund of the employees of the Company 
and the Company has no outstanding liability as at the year-end as the Provident Fund is managed by a 
separate trust.

Changes in the Board

During the year under review, there was no change in structure of the Board.

Board and Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance

During the year under review, five meetings of the Board of Directors and four meetings of the Audit Committee 
were held from July 01, 2020 to June 30, 2021. The attendance of the Board and Audit Committee members 
was as follows:

Leave of absence was granted to members who did not attend the Board and Committee meetings. 

Name of Director

Mr. Zafar Alam
Ms. Sharmin Shahid
Ms. Nida Ahsan
Mr. Muhammad Haroon
Mr. Mohsin Madni
Mr. Muhammad Shahid Ali 
Mr. Muhammad Sohail Salat

Board Meeting

4
4
3
3
4
4
4

Audit Committee Meeting

N/ A
N/A
N/A
3
4

N/A
4
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Name of Director

Mr. Zafar Alam
Mr. Muhammad Sohail Salat
Ms. Sharmin Shahid
Mr. Mohsin Madni
Mr. Muhammad Haroon
Ms. Nida Ahsan
Mr. Muhammad Shahid Ali
Mr. Muhammad Taha Siddiqui
Spouses
Minor Children

Designation

Chairman
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer & Company 
Secretary

Shares Bought

24,500
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Shares Sold

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Remarks
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Trading in Shares of the Company by Directors and Executives

During the year following trades in the shares of the Company were carried out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company 
Secretary and their spouses and minor children:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board continued to perform its duties and responsibilities in an effective manner as per its 
terms of reference duly approved by the Board. The committee composition has also been attached with this report.

Corporate and Secretarial Compliance

The Company Secretary has furnished a Secretarial Compliance Certificate as part of the annual return filed with the 
registrar of Companies to certify that the secretarial and corporate requirements of the Companies Act, 2017, 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the listing regulations have been duly complied with.

Ethics and Business Practices

As per the Corporate Governance guidelines, the Company has circulated a “Code of Ethics” for compliance. It has 
been signed by all directors and employees of the Company acknowledging their understanding and acceptance of 
the Code.

Pattern of Shareholding

The detailed pattern of the shareholding and categories of shareholders of the Company as at June 30, 2021, as 
required under the listing regulations, have been appended to this Annual Report.

Information to Stakeholders

Key operating and financial data of previous years has been summarized and is presented on page No. 187.

Post Balance Sheet Date Event / Dividend

The Board of Directors has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 10/- per share amounting to Rs. 594 million and 
bonus shares in the proportion of 10 shares for every 100 shares held (i.e 10%) at its meeting held on July 30, 2021 
for the approval of the members at the annual general meeting to be held on September 25, 2021. These 
unconsolidated financial statements do not reflect the said appropriation.      

Related party transaction

In order to comply with the requirements of listing regulations, the Company has presented all related party 
transactions before the Audit Committee and Board for their review and approval. These transactions have been 
approved by the Audit Committee and Board in their respective meetings. The details of all related party transactions 
have been provided in note 34 & 35 of the annexed audited financial statements.
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Auditors 

The retiring auditors M/s. Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq, Chartered Accountants, have offered 
themselves for reappointment. The Board recommends their reappointment and a resolution proposing the 
appointment of M/s. Rehman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq as auditors of the Company for the financial year 
2021-22 will be submitted at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting for approval.  

Future Prospects

The Future prospects of your Company are promising on account of the Management’s efforts towards 
increasing the Company’s market share and through wider participation in all its business segments particularly 
the online and retail division through digital onboarding. The Company is striving to yield better volumes from its 
existing clientele as well as prospective domestic and foreign clients, by expanding and growing relationships 
with them through the Company’s premium suite of services. This includes offering novel products and services 
through augmenting the Company’s high-quality Research.

The Management also foresees increased activity on account of new equity and debt listings for which the 
Investment Banking Division is well equipped.

The Management is confident that the Company’s equity and property investment portfolio will likely 
demonstrate good results, as the economy and the market continue to offer rewarding investment opportunities.

Acknowledgement

We are grateful to the Company’s shareholders for their continuing confidence and patronage. We record our 
sincere appreciation to all Stakeholders, our Parent Company, the State Bank of Pakistan, the Securities & 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Management of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for their 
unwavering support and guidance. 

We acknowledge and appreciate the hard work put in by the employees of the Company during the period. We 
also acknowledge the valuable contribution and active role of the members of the Board Committees in 
supporting and guiding the management on matters of great importance. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Muhammad Shahid Ali Habib       Zafar Alam
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director       Chairman

Karachi.
Dated: July 30, 2021
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FINANCIAL & BUSINESS 
HIGHLIGHTS Year ended 30 June 

20202021 20182019 2017

Rupees in million

Profit and Loss Account 
Operating Revenue  1,512  645   767   656   858 
Investment gains - net   1,276  (70)  (657)  10   520 
Other  103  140   154   167   262 
Total turnover   3,181  847   634   1,219   1,672 
      
Operating & administrative expenses   (637)  (344)  (396)  (324)  (386)
Finance Cost  (132)  (362)  (218)  (185)  (138)
Profit / (loss) before taxation   2,393  129   12   653   1,140 
Profit / (loss) after taxation   2,084  60   (62)  536   880 
EBITDA  2,560  519   239   846   1,287 

 
Balance Sheet       
Share Capital   594  594   660   550   550 
Reserves   4,386  2,662   2,242   2,622   2,636 
Share holders equity  4,995  3,271   2,917   3,187   3,201 
Long term investment  136  127   154   160   172 
Investment property   1,726  1,726   1,726   1,373   369 
Current assets   6,250  4,944   3,711   3,878   5,081 
Current liabilities   3,473  3,239   2,725   2,286   2,491 
Total assets   8,472  6,869   5,642   5,473   5,693 
Total liability   3,477  3,598   2,725   2,286   2,492 
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20202021 20182019 2017

RATIOS
Performance      
Profit before tax (%)   75.2   15.2   2.0   53.6   68.2 
Expense / income (%)   20.0   40.6   62.5   26.6   23.1 
Return on Equity (%)   50.4   1.9   (2.0)  16.8   29.8 
Return on Capital Employed (%)   55.5   3.9   0.4   20.4   38.6 
      
Leverage      
Debt to Asset (%)   16.2   26.7   33.8   26.9   24.7 
Debt to Equity (%)   27.4   56.1   65.4   46.2   44.0 
Interest Cover x   18.2   0.4   0.1   3.5   8.3 
      
Liquidity      
Current Ratio (x)   1.80   1.53   1.36   1.70   2.04 
Quick /Acid Test (x)   1.63   1.45   1.13   1.48   1.67 
      
Valuation      
Earnings per Share (PKR)   35.08   1.00   (0.94)  9.75   16.01 
Price to Earnings Ratio (x)   2.31   32.60   (64.63)  6.26   5.02 
Price to Book Ratio (x)   0.96   0.59   1.38   1.05   1.38 
Dividend Yield Ratio (%)   12.3   7.7   -     4.9   12.4 
Dividend Payout Ratio (%)   28.5   250.5   -     30.8   62.5 
Cash Dividend per Share (PKR)   10.00   2.50   -     3.00   10.00 
Stock Dividend per Share (%)   10.0   -     -     20.0   -   
Market Value at end of each year (PKR)   81.12   32.5   61.0   61.0   80.41 
High Price (during the year) (PKR)   88.75   66.5   70.1   88.0   113.51 
Low Price (during the year) (PKR)   32.27   22.6   26.4   36.4   45.79 
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GRAPHICAL 
REPRESENTATION
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Balance Sheet       

      

Total equity and minority interest  4,995   53   3,271   12   2,917   (8)

Total non-current liabilities  4   (99)  358   100   -     - 

Total current liabilits  3,473   7   3,239   19   2,725   19 

Total equity and liabilities  8,472   23   6,869   22   5,642   3 

Total non-current assets  2,222   17   1,901   1   1,891   19 

Total current assets  6,250   26   4,968   32   3,751   (3)

Total assets  8,472   23   6,869   22   5,642   3 

      

Profit and Loss Accounts      

      

Net operating revenue  3,181   276   847   34   634   (48)

Operating and administrative expenses  (637)  85   (344)  (13)  (396)  22 

Operating profit / (loss)    2,544   406   503   111   238   (73)

Other income / (charges) - net  (19)  55   (12)  82   (7)  (88)

  2,525   414   491   112   231   (72)

Finance cost  (132)  (64)  (362)  66   (218)  18 

Profit / (loss) before tax  2,393   1,755   129   863   13   (55)

Taxation  (309)  348   (69)  (8)  (75)  (36)

Profit / (loss) after tax  2,084   3,374   60   (198)  (61)  (111)

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%Rupees in
million

%Rupees in
million

%Rupees in
million

2021 2020 2019
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Balance Sheet        

     

Total equity and minority interest  3,187   -  3,201   18   2,705   1 

Total non-current liabilities  -     -   -   (74)  2   (10)

Total current liabilits 2,286   (8)  2,491   (13)  2,856   111 

Total equity and liabilities  5,473   (4)  5,692   2   5,563   38 

Total non-current assets 1,595   161   611   (27)  840   2 

Total current assets  3,878   (24)  5,081   8   4,723   47 

Total assets  5,473   (4)  5,692   2   5,563   38 

Profit and Loss Accounts       

Net operating revenue 1,219   (27)  1,672   86   899   (48)

Operating and administrative expenses (324)  (16)  (386)  44   (268)  (11)

Operating profit / (loss)   895   (30)  1,286   104   631   (55)

Other income / (charges) - net (57)  613   (8)  (11)  (9)  (76)

 838   (34)  1,278   105   622   (55)

Finance cost (185)  34   (138)  (17)  (166)  (29)

Profit / (loss) before tax 653   -  1,140   89   456   (84)

Taxation  (117)  (55)  (260)  459   (47)  (78)

Profit / (loss) after tax 536   (39)  880   115   410   (56)

%Rupees in
million

%Rupees in
million

2018 2017

%Rupees in
million

2016
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%Rupees in
million

%Rupees in
million

%Rupees in
million

Balance Sheet       

      

Total equity and minority interest  4,995   59   3,271   48   2,917   52 

Total non-current liabilities  4   -   358   5   -     -   

Total current liabilits  3,473   41   3,239   47   2,725   48 

Total equity and liabilities  8,472   100   6,869   100   5,642   100 

Total non-current assets  2,222   26   1,901   28   1,891   34 

Total current assets  6,250   74   4,968   72   3,751   66 

Total assets  8,472   100   6,869   100   5,642   100 

      

Profit and Loss Accounts      

      

Net operating revenue  3,181   100   847   100   634   100 

      

Operating and administrative expenses  (637)  (20)  (344)  (41)  (396)  (62)

Operating profit / (loss)  2,544   80   503   59   238   38 

      

Other income / (charges) - net  (19)  (1)  (12)  (1)  (7)  (1)

  2,525   79   491   58   231   36 

      

Finance cost  (132)  (4)  (362)  (43)  (218)  (34)

Profit / (loss) before tax  2,393   75   129   15   13   2 

      

Taxation  (309)  (10)  (69)  (8)  (75)  (12)

(Loss) / profit after tax  2,084   66   60   7   (61)  (10)

2021 2020 2019

VERTICAL ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Balance Sheet     

    

Total equity and minority interest 3,187   58   3,201   56   2,705   49 

Total non-current liabilities  -     -     -   -   2   - 

Total current liabilits  2,286   42   2,491   44   2,856   51 

Total equity and liabilities 5,473   100   5,692   100   5,563   100 

Total non-current assets 1,595   29   611   11   840   15 

Total current assets  3,878   71   5,081   89   4,723   85 

Total assets 5,473   100   5,692   100   5,563   100 

Profit and Loss Accounts       

Net operating revenue 1,219   100   1,672   100   899   100  

Operating and administrative expenses (324)  (27)  (386)  (23)  (268)  (30)

Operating profit / (loss)  895   73   1,286   77   631   70 

Other income / (charges) - net (57)  (5)  (8)  -  (9)  (1) 

 838   69   1,278   76   622   69 

Finance cost  (185)  (15)  (138)  (8)  (166)  (18)

Profit / (loss) before tax 653   54   1,140   68   456   51 

Taxation (117)  (10)  (260)  (16)  (47)  (5)

(Loss) / profit after tax 536   44   880   53   410   46 

%Rupees in
million

%Rupees in
million

2018 2017

%Rupees in
million

2016
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M/s. Arif Habib Limited (“the company”) has complied with the requirements of listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (‘the Regulations’) in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

 a. Male:  5 members 
 b. Female: 2 members 

2. The composition of the Board of Directors (‘the Board’) board is as follows

Category Names

Independent Directors:      Mr. Zafar Alam
 Dr. Muhammad Sohail Salat

Non-Executive Directors:  Mr. Muhammad Haroon 
 Mr. Mohsin Madni
 Ms. Sharmin Shahid
 Ms. Nida Ahsan

Executive Director:  Mr. Muhammad Shahid Ali Habib

Female Directors: Ms. Sharmin Shahid
 Ms. Nida Ahsan

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including this company.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
company. The Board has ensured that a complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates of 
approval or updation / amendment is maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board/ 
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (‘the Act’) and the Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board 
for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board.

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act 
and the Regulations.

9. Company stands complied with the requirement of having 75% of the directors of the board Director’s Training 
Program (DTP) certified as prescribed under the sub clause 1(ii) of regulation no. 19 of the Regulations as out of total 
seven (7) directors, the total number of certified directors of the Company stands five (5) and one (1) of the director 
meets the exemption requirement of the DTP. The remaining one (1) director shall obtain certification under the DTP 
in due course of time as soon as the COVID19 restrictions gets relaxed.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED 
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
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11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

 a) Audit Committee 

 Dr. Muhammad Sohail Salat Chairman
 Mr. Muhammad Haroon Member
 Mr. Mohsin Madni Member

 b) HR and Remuneration Committee  

 Dr. Muhammad Sohail Salat Chairman 
 Mr. Muhammad Shahid Ali Habib Member 
 Mr. Muhammad Haroon Member
 Ms. Nida Ahsan Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for 
compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

 a)  Audit Committee   Four quarterly meetings were held during the financial year ended June 30, 2021.
 b) HR and Remuneration Committee Four meetings were held during the financial year ended June 30, 2021.

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the 
purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality 
control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight 
Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a 
close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non- dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in 
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they 
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with; 
Explanation as required under the regulations is mentioned below;

 Company, currently has two elected independent directors out of total seven directors on the Board. Both the independent 
directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and experience to discharge and execute their duties competently 
as per laws and regulations under which hereby fulfill the necessary requirements; therefore, not warrant the appointment of 
a third independent director.

19. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with except for the requirement that the 
position of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary has been held by the same person, as the Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (‘Regulations”) allowed the Companies to either comply or explain the 
reason otherwise. Therefore, the Company has adopted explanation approach as the management is of the view, that the 
current CFO & Company Secretary is suitably qualified and professionally capable to act and fulfill the duties and 
responsibilities of both the roles. In addition, it is also a cost effective measure that is in the better interest of the shareholders 
of the Company, therefore hiring a separate person for both position is not feasible

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi
July 30, 2021

Zafar Alam
Chairman
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REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT 
OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED 
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

To the members of M/s. Arif Habib Limited

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Arif Habib Limited 
(the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2021 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the 
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s 
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance 
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel 
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls 
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance 
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the 
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 
June 30, 2021.

Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq
Chartered AccountantsKarachi.

Date: July 30, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Arif Habib Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, the unconsolidated 
statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated 
statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, 
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the 
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and 
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of 
the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Key Audit Matter(s)NO.

Valuation of unquoted investments in equity securities

How the matter was addressed in our audit

01.

Valuation of investment properties02.

Following are the Key audit matter(s):

As stated in note 7.2.2 to the unconsolidated financial 
statements, the Company revalued its investment in 
unquoted ordinary shares of M/s. ISE Towers REIT 
Management Company Limited and M/s. LSE Financial 
Services Limited based on the valuation carried out 
independent external valuer engaged by management 
through the use of Discounted Free Cash Flow to Equity 
model for business valuation. Since the use of such valua-
tion model requires management to make significant 
estimates and assumptions, the degree of subjectivity and 
complexity involved in the valuation increases to a consid-
erable extent. This, in turn, affected our assessment of the 
risk that the unconsolidated financial statements may be 
materially misstated due to error and, hence, necessitated 
us to devote our significant time and resources to address 
the risk successfully.

As stated in note 8.1 to the unconsolidated financial 
statements, the Company recorded its investment proper-
ties (i.e. residential and commercial plots of land located in 
the Naya Nazimabad project as well as of offices located in 
Pakistan Stock Exchange, and LSE Financial Services 
Limited) at fair value based on the valuation carried out by 
an independent external valuer engaged by management. 
The valuation of such properties was identified as an area 
subject to significant risk due to involvement of estimates 
made by the valuer in determining the fair value of invest-
ment properties. 
 
Due to the significance of the estimate and the involvement 
of significant management assumptions and judgements, 
we considered valuation of investment properties as a key 
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

• Obtained an understanding of the valuation exercise 
carried out by the independent external valuer 
engaged by management who was responsible for 
performing the valuation.

 
• Made inquiries of such persons in order to assess their 

competence, capability and objectivity of the external 
valuer which are recognized as the important factors 
a�ecting the reliability of the valuation. 

• Evaluated the appropriateness of the work of the 
Company’s personnel by assessing the reasonableness 
of signi�cant assumptions used by management in 
estimating the following factors:

 - Components of cost of equity of investee compa-
nies (used as discount rate) such as the risk-free rate 
of return, equity risk premium and equity beta; 

 - Signi�cant amounts of revenues, operating expens-
es, capital expenditures, tax payments, dividend 
receipts etc. used in the cash �ow projections; and  

 - Long term growth rates assumed by management 
in estimating the terminal value of the investee 
companies at the end of the 5-year projection 
period.

To address this significant risk, we, amongst others, 
carried out the following key audit procedures: 

• We obtained an understanding of the scope of the 
valuer’s work; 

• As stated in the valuation report, development work in 
the area in which the Company holds properties at 
Naya Nazimabad is ongoing and is rapidly progressing 
and that the value of the properties was determined on 
the basis of investigation with other realtors.  Accord-
ingly, we reviewed the investments made by the 
Company in other blocks of the Naya Nazimabad 
project over the past few years with respect to the cost 
of acquisition, valuation and disposals. Further, we 
corroborated the values assigned to the properties by 
the valuer with that realized on the most recent proper-
ty disposal transactions executed by the Company; and

• Performed appropriate background searches to 
ascertain whether the values assigned to the properties 
by the valuer are closely aligned to those determined 
through independent sources.
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report, but does not include the unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s 
reports thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. However, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated �nancial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is su�cient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresenta-
tions, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropri-
ate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the e�ectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast signi�cant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated �nancial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to contin-
ue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated �nancial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated �nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are, therefore, the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of �nancial position, the unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss, the unconsolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated 
statement of cash �ows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Compa-
ny’s business;

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company 
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance; and

e) the Company was in compliance with the requirement of section 78 of the Securities Act 2015, and the relevant require-
ments of Securities Brokers (Licencing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 as at the date on which the unconsolidated 
�nancial statements were prepared.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Muhammad Waseem.

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date: July 30, 2021 
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AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE MEMBER

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Arif Habib Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), 
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the 
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the consolidated statement 
of financial position, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming 
part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view 
of the state of the Group’s affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Key Audit Matter(s)NO.

Valuation of unquoted investments in equity securities

How the matter was addressed in our audit

01.

Following are the Key audit matter(s):

As stated in note 7.2 to the consolidated financial 
statements, the Group revalued its investment in unquoted 
ordinary shares of M/s. ISE Towers REIT Management 
Company Limited and M/s. LSE Financial Services 
Limited based on the valuation carried out independent 
external valuer engaged by management through the use 
of Discounted Free Cash Flow to Equity model for 
business valuation. Since the use of such valuation model 
requires management to make significant estimates and 
assumptions, the degree of subjectivity and complexity 
involved in the valuation increases to a considerable 
extent. This, in turn, affected our assessment of the risk 
that the consolidated financial statements may be 
materially misstated due to error and, hence, necessitated 
us to devote our significant time and resources to address 
the risk successfully.

Our audit procedures included the following:

• Obtained an understanding of the valuation 
exercise carried out by the independent external 
valuer engaged by management who was respon-
sible for performing the valuation.

 
• Made inquiries of such persons in order to assess 

their competence, capability and objectivity of the 
external valuer which are recognized as the import-
ant factors affecting the reliability of the valuation. 

• Evaluated the appropriateness of the work of the 
Holding Company’s personnel by assessing the 
reasonableness of significant assumptions used by 
management in estimating the following factors:

 - Components of cost of equity of investee 
companies (used as discount rate) such as the 
risk-free rate of return, equity risk premium and 
equity beta; 

 - Significant amounts of revenues, operating 
expenses, capital expenditures, tax payments, 
dividend receipts etc. used in the cash flow 
projections; and  

 - Long term growth rates assumed by manage-
ment in estimating the terminal value of the 
investee companies at the end of the 5-year 
projection period.

Valuation of investment properties02.

As stated in note 8.1 to the consolidated financial 
statements, the Group recorded its investment properties 
(i.e. residential and commercial plots of land located in the 
Naya Nazimabad project as well as of offices located in 
Pakistan Stock Exchange and LSE Financial Services 
Limited) at fair value based on the valuation carried out by 
an independent external valuer engaged by management. 
The valuation of such properties was identified as an area 
subject to significant risk due to involvement of estimates 
made by the valuer in determining the fair value of 
investment properties. 
 
Due to the significance of the estimate and the involve-
ment of significant management assumptions and 
judgements, we considered valuation of investment 
properties as a key audit matter.

To address this significant risk, we, amongst others, 
carried out the following key audit procedures: 

• We obtained an understanding of the scope of the 
valuer’s work; 

• As stated in the valuation report, development work 
in the area in which the Group holds properties at 
Naya Nazimabad is ongoing and is rapidly 
progressing and that the value of the properties 
was determined on the basis of investigation with 
other realtors.  Accordingly, we reviewed the 
investments made by the Group in other blocks of 
the Naya Nazimabad project over the past few 
years with respect to the cost of acquisition, valua-
tion and disposals. Further, we corroborated the 
values assigned to the properties by the valuer with 
that realized on the most recent property disposal 
transactions executed by the Group; and

• Performed appropriate background searches to 
ascertain whether the values assigned to the 
properties by the valuer are closely aligned to 
those determined through independent sources.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual 
report, but does not include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. However, we have nothing to report 
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in 
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

110 Passion for Performance



We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are, therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Group as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows togeth-
er with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement 
with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Group’s 
business;

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Group and depos-
ited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance; and

e) the Group was in compliance with the requirement of section 78 of the Securities Act 2015, and the relevant requirements of 
Securities Brokers (Licencing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 as at the date on which the consolidated financial statements 
were prepared.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Muhammad Waseem.

Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date: July 30, 2021
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Notice is hereby given that the Seventeenth Annual 
General Meeting of Arif Habib Limited will be held on 
September 25, 2021 at 10:00 A.M. at PSX Auditorium, 
Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road, 
Karachi, further, consequent to the current situation 
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, shareholders can 
alternatively opt to attend the meeting through video link 
facility managed from the Company’s head office at the 
Arif Habib Centre, 23, M.T. Khan Road, Karachi, to 
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1) To confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting 
held on September 19, 2020.

2) To review, consider and adopt audited accounts of 
the company together with the auditors’ and 
directors’ report thereon including approval of the 
annexures there to, for the year ended June 30, 
2021 together with Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company and the Auditors’ 
Reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

3) To consider and approve final dividend for the year 
ended June 30, 2021, in cash at Rs. 10 per share 
i.e. 100% and by way of issue of fully paid bonus 
shares in the proportion of 1 share for every 10 
shares held by the members i.e. 10% as 
recommended by the Board of Directors.

4) To appoint auditors of the company and fix their 
remuneration for the financial year 2021-22. The 
Board of Directors have recommended for 
reappointment of M/s. Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim 
Iqbal Rafiq, Chartered Accountants as external 
auditors. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

5) To consider, subject to declaration of the final 
dividend as above, capitalization of a sum of Rs. 
59,400,000 (Rupees Fifty nine million four hundred 
thousand) by way of issue of 5,940,000 fully paid 
bonus shares of Rs. 10 each and if thought fit to 
pass and ordinary resolution in the matter.

“RESOLVED THAT a sum of Rs. 59,400,000 (Rupees 
Fifty nine million four hundred thousand) out of 
Reserves of the Company available for appropriation as 
at June 30, 2021, be capitalized and applied for issue of 

5,940,000 (Five million nine hundred forty thousand) 
ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each allotted as fully paid 
bonus shares to the members of the Company whose 
names appear on the register of members as at close of 
business on September 17, 2021 in the proportion of 
one shares of every ten shares held (i.e. 10%) and that 
such shares shall rank pari passu in every respect with 
the existing ordinary shares of the company.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the bonus shares so 
allotted shall not be entitled for final cash dividend for the 
year 2021.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT fractional entitlement of 
the members shall be consolidated into whole shares 
and sold on the Pakistan Stock Exchange and the sale 
proceeds thereof will be donated as deemed 
appropriate by the Board.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company 
Secretary be and is hereby authorized and empowered 
to give effect to this resolution and to do or cause to do 
all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary or 
required for issue of allotment and distribution of bonus 
shares.”

6) To authorize the Board of Directors of the 
Company to approve those transactions with 
related parties (if executed) during the financial 
year ending 30th June 2022 which require 
approval of shareholders u/s 207 and u/s 208 of 
the Companies Act, 2017, by passing the following 
special resolution with or without modification:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the 
Company be and is hereby authorized to approve the 
transactions to be conducted with Related Parties on 
case to case basis for the financial year ending 30th 
June 2022.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the transactions 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been 
approved by the shareholders u/s 207 and / or u/s 208 of 
the Companies Act, 2017 (if triggered) and shall be 
placed before the shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting for their formal ratification/approval u/s 207 and 
/ or 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 (if required).”
 
7) To consider and if deemed fit, pass the following 

Special Resolutions with or without modification(s):

NOTICE OF SEVENTEENTH 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES & ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS:  

“RESOLVED THAT the consent and approval be and is hereby accorded under Section 199 of the Companies Act, 
2017 and “Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2012” for the 
following limit of investments/ additional investments in associated companies and associated undertakings subject 
to the terms and conditions mentioned in the Annexure-B of Statement under Section 134(3).”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the consent and approval be and is hereby accorded under Section 199 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 for renewal of the following equity investments limit up to unutilized portion of for which approval 
had been sought in previous general meeting(s), in associated companies and associated undertakings as 
mentioned in the annexed statement under Section 134(3).”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the consent and approval be and is hereby accorded under Section 199 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 for renewal of following sanctioned limits of loans and advances for which approval has been 
sought in previous general meeting, in associated companies and associated undertakings as mentioned in the 
annexed statement under Section 134(3) whereas the renewal of limits will be in the nature of running finance for a 
period of one year and shall be renewable in next general meeting(s) for further period(s) of one year.” 

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive and/or the Company Secretary be and are hereby authorized to 
take and do and/or cause to be taken or done any/all necessary actions, deeds and things which are or may be 
necessary for giving effect to the aforesaid resolutions and to do all acts, matters, deeds, and things which are 
necessary, incidental and/or consequential to the investment of the Company’s funds as above as and when required 
at the time of investment.”

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

8) To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair.

Statements under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, comprising of Annexure A, Annexure B and Annexure 
C pertaining to the special business is being sent to the shareholders along with this notice.
 
   
 By order of the Board

Karachi                    Muhammad Taha Siddiqui
Friday, September 03, 2021 Company Secretary 

Name of Companies & Undertakings

1 Safemix Concrete Products Limited  - - 156 250
2 Arif Habib Corporation Limited  - - - 1,500
3 Power Cement Limited  1,000 500 107 500
4 Aisha Steel Mills Limited  1,000 500 - 500
5 Javedan Corporation Limited  1,000 500 - 500

Amount in Million 

Proposed Fresh
Investment

Equity Loan / Advance
/ Guarantee 

Equity Loan / Advance
/ Guarantee 

Renewal 
Requested



159 Passion for Performance

A. Participation of shareholders through online facility 

In pursuance of SECP’s Circular No. 4 dated February 15, 2021, pertaining to Regulatory Relief to dilute impact 
of Corona Virus (COVID 19) for Corporate Sector, the shareholders shall be entitled to attend the proceedings 
of the AGM through online means using a video link facility, Zoom application or other electronic means for the 
safety and well-being of the valued shareholders and the general public. 

The shareholders will be able to login and participate in the AGM proceedings through their smartphones or 
computer devices from their homes or any convenient location after completing all the formalities required for 
the verification and identification of the shareholders.

The login facility will be opened at 09:30 a.m. on September 25, 2021 enabling the participants to join the 
proceedings which will start at 10:00 a.m. sharp.  

Shareholders interested in attending the AGM through electronic means, are requested to register themselves 
by submitting their following particulars at the Company’s designated email address 
agm2021@arifhabibltd.com before the close of business hours on September 17, 2021. The link to the zoom 
application will be sent to the shareholders on the email address provided in the below table: 

Login facility will be shared with the shareholders whose emails addresses are provided on above table, 
shareholders can also provide their comments / suggestions on agm2021@arifhabibltd.com or Whatsapp or 
SMS on 0321-8210507 for the agenda items proposed to be conducted at the AGM in the same manner as it 
is being discussed in the AGM, and later shall be made part of the minutes of the meeting. 

The purpose of the aforementioned arrangements is to ensure maximum participation of the shareholders in 
the AGM through an online facility. Shareholders are also requested to consolidate their attendance through 
proxies, so that the quorum requirement may also be fulfilled.

B. Book closure: 

i)  The share transfer books will remain closed from September 18, 2021 to September 25, 2021 (both days 
inclusive). Transfers in good order, received at the office of Company’s Share Registrar, CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited, CDC House, 99 – B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 by close of 
the business on September 17, 2021 will be treated in time for the purpose of attending the annual general 
meeting and for determination of entitlement of shareholders to cash dividend and bonus shares. 

ii)  All members/shareholders are entitled to attend, speak and vote at the annual general meeting. A 
member/shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf. The proxy need not be a 
member of the Company. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the office of our  Registrar: M/s. 
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99 – B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, 
Karachi-74400 not less than 48 hours before the meeting. 

iii)  In pursuance of Circular No. 1. of 2000 of SECP dated January 26, 2000 the beneficial owners of the shares 
registered in the name of Central Depository Company (CDC) and/or their proxies are required to produce their 
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or passport for identification purpose at the time of attending the 
meeting. The form of proxy must be submitted with the Company within the stipulated time, duly witnessed by 
two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers must be mentioned on the form, along with attested 
copies of the CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owner and the proxy. 

 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the 
nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

Shareholder’s  Name  CNIC No. Folio / CDC 
Account No.

 
  Cell No.  No. of

shares held Email address  

    
 

NOTES
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iv)  Members are requested to intimate any changes in address immediately to Company’s Share Registrar, CDC 
Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99 – B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, 
Karachi-74400.  

CNIC / NTN Number on Dividend Warrant (Mandatory) 

As already been notified from time to time, SECP has directed vide its Notification S.R.O. 831(1)/2012 dated 
July 5, 2012, that the electronic Dividend should also bear the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) 
Number of the registered shareholder or the authorized person, except in case of minor(s) and corporate 
shareholder(s). 

In order to comply with the SECP’s directives and in terms of Section 243(2)(a) of the Companies Act, 2017, 
the Company shall be constrained to withhold the Dividend Warrant(s), in case of non-availability copy of valid 
CNIC (for individuals) and National Tax Number (for a corporate entity). 

Accordingly, shareholders who have not yet submitted a copy of their valid CNIC or NTN are once again 
requested to immediately submit the same to the Company or Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited. 

C. Payment of Cash Dividend through electronic mode: 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed 
company to pay cash dividend to its shareholder only through electronic mode directly into the bank account 
designated by the entitled shareholder. Please note that giving bank mandate for dividend payments is 
mandatory and in order to comply with this regulatory requirement, you are requested to please provide the 
following information to your respective CDC Participant / CDC Investor Account Services (in case your 
shareholding is in Book Entry Form) or to our Share Registrar M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, 
Share Registrar Department, CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi – 74400 
(in case your shareholding is in Physical Form):

       Details of Shareholder
Name of shareholder 
Folio/ CDS Account No. 
CNIC No. 
Cell number of shareholder 
Landline number of shareholder, if any 
Email

        Details of Bank Account
Title of Bank Account 
Account International Bank Account 

Number (IBAN) “Mandatory”   PK _____________________________________ (24 digits) 
(Kindly provide your accurate IBAN number after 
consulting with your respective bank branch since in case 
of any error or omission in given IBAN, the company will 
not be held responsible in any manner for any loss or delay 
in your cash dividend payment).

Bank’s Name 
Branch Name and Address

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and in case of any change therein, I / we will 
immediately intimate Participant / Share Registrar accordingly.

 _____________________ 
Signature of shareholder
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D. Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001:

a) Pursuant to the provisions of the Finance Act 2021 effective July 1, 2021, the rate of deduction of income tax 
from dividend payments has been revised as follows:

i. Rate of tax deduction for filers of income tax return – 15% 
ii. Rate of tax deduction for non-filers of income tax return – 30% 

 Shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) available on the website of 
FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are entered in 
ATL, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 30% instead of 15%. 

b) Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income, shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax exemption 
certificate is made available to Company’s Share Registrar by the first day of book closure. 

c) Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
“Filer/Non-filer” status of principal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions. 

 In this regard all shareholders who hold company’s shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding 
proportions or principal shareholder and joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them (if not already provided) 
to Company’s Share Registrar, in writing as follows:

The required information must reach Company’s Share Registrar within 10 days of this notice; otherwise it will 
be assumed that the shares are equally held by the principal shareholder and joint-holder(s).
 
d) The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their NTN updated with their respective 

participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders are requested to send a copy of their NTN certificate to 
the Company’s Share Registrar. The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be, 
must quote the company name and their respective folio numbers. 

E. Availability of annual audited financial statements

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 have been made available 
on the Company's website (http://www.arifhabibltd.com) in addition to annual and quarterly financial 
statements for the prior years.

Further, this is to inform that in accordance with SRO 470(I)/2016 dated May 31, 2016, through which SECP 
has allowed companies to circulate the annual audited accounts to its members through CD/DVD/USB instead 
of transmitting the hard copies at their registered addresses, subject to consent of shareholders and 
compliance with certain other conditions, the Company has obtained shareholders’ approval in its Annual 
General Meeting held on September 24, 2016. Accordingly Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 
June 30, 2021 is dispatched to the shareholders through CD. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for 
hard copy of Annual Audited Financial Statements, the same shall be provided free of cost within seven 
working days of receipt of such request. For convenience of shareholders, a “Standard Request Form for 
provision of Annual Audited Financial Accounts” have also been made available on the Company’s website.

  
Principal Shareholder  

 
Joint Shareholder 

Company Name  Folio/CDS 
Account # 

Total 
Shares  

Name and 
CNIC #  

Shareholding 
Proportion (No. 
of Shares)  

Name and
CNIC #  

Shareholding 
Proportion 
(No. of Shares) 
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F. Unpaid Dividend Account 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017. 

(i) Where a dividend has been declared by a company but has not been paid or claimed, within a time period 
specified under Section 242, to any shareholder entitled to the payment of the dividend, the company shall, 
within fifteen days from the date of expiry of the said period, transfer the total amount of dividend which remains 
unpaid or unclaimed to a separate profit bearing account to be called the unpaid dividend account opened by 
the company for this purpose in any scheduled bank. The deposits in the unpaid dividend account shall only be 
used for payment to a claimant as given in sub-section 4. 

Explanation - Dividend for the purpose of this section means the dividend payable in cash. 

(ii) The company shall, within a period of ninety days of making any deposit of the amount under sub-section (1) to 
the unpaid dividend account, prepare a statement containing the names, the last known addresses, number of 
shares held, the amount of unpaid dividend to be paid to each shareholder and such other particulars as may be 
specified and place it on the website of the company required under any law, rules, regulations or directions to 
maintain a website and also on any other website as may be specified.

(iii) Any change in the information to be maintained on the website under sub-section (2) shall be effected by the 
company in such manner and within such time as may be specified. 

(iv) Any person claiming to be entitled to any money transferred under sub-section (1) to the unpaid dividend 
account of the company may apply to the company for payment of the money claimed.

 
(v) The company shall make payment to the bonafide claimant within a period of thirty days from the date of 

submission of a claim with the company. No claimant shall be entitled to any amount except his unclaimed 
dividend amount. 

(vi) The amount of profit generated from the account maintained by the company under this section shall be used 
by the company for its corporate social responsibility initiatives and specified purposes.
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This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business given in Agenda item No. 4 and Agenda 
item No. 5 of the Notice to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company. Directors of the Company 
have no interest in the special business except in their capacity as director / shareholder

ANNEXURE A         
         
AUTHORIZATION FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO APPROVE THOSE TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES (IF EXECUTED) DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30TH, 2021 WHICH REQUIRE 
APPROVAL OF SHAREHOLDERS U/S 207 AND / OR 208 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
         
The Company shall be conducting transactions with its related parties during the year ending 30th June 2022 
on an arm’s length basis as per the approved policy with respect to ‘transactions with related parties’ in the 
normal course of business. Being the directors of a brokerage house, many Directors may be deemed to be 
treated as interested in transactions with related parties due to their shareholding in such companies. In order 
to promote good corporate governance and transparent business practices, the shareholders desire to 
authorize the Board of Directors to approve transactions with the related parties from time-to-time on case to 
case basis, including transactions (if executed) triggering approval of shareholders u/s 207 and / or 208 of the 
Companies Act, 2017, for the year ending June 30th, 2022, which transactions shall be deemed to be approved 
by the Shareholders. The nature and scope of such related party transactions is explained above. These 
transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the next AGM for their formal approval/ratification.  

The Directors are interested in the resolution only to the extent of their shareholding and / or directorships in 
such companies.         

    

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION
134(3) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2017
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017  

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES & ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS  

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the specific limits for loans/advances along with other 
particulars for investments in the following associated companies and associated undertakings subject to the 
consent of members under Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 / Companies (Investment in Associated 
Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017. The Board of Directors do hereby undertake / 
certify that necessary due diligence for the following proposed investments have been carried out. The principle 
purpose of this special resolution is to make the Company in a ready position to capitalize on the investment 
opportunities as and when they arrive. It is prudent that the Company should be able to make the investment 
at the right time when the opportunity is available. 

Annexure - B

S.No Description Information

1 Name of the associated company or associated
 undertakingalong with criteria based on which the
 associated relationship is established

 
2 Purpose, benefits and period of investment
 
 

3 Maximum amount of investment
  
 

4 Maximum price at which securities will be acquired
 
 
5 Maximum number of securities to be acquired
 
 
6 In case the purchase price is higher than market
 value in case of listed securities and fair value in
 case of unlisted securities, justification thereof

 
7 Number of securities and percentage thereof held
 before and after the proposed investment
 
 

8 In case of investment in listed securities, average of
 the preceding twelve weekly average price of the
 security intended to be acquired

 
9 In case of investment in unlisted securities, fair
 market value of such securities determined in terms
 of regulation 6 (1)

SAFEMIX CONCRETE PRODUCTS LIMITED
An associated undertaking due to investments by
the holding Company

For the benefit of the Company and to earn better
returns in the long run on strategic investment by
capturing the opportunities on the right time

Unutilized limit of PKR 155.69 million is requested for 
approval. This is in addition to Investment at cost of 
PKR 94.31 million already made upto 30 June, 2021.

At par/premium/market/offered/negotiated price
prevailing on the date of transaction/investment

No of securities purchasable under approved limit in
accordance with / based on Sr. Nos. 3 & 4 above

Not Applicable

Before: 5.69 million shares held in the Company as on 
30 June, 2021 being 22.80% holding. After: Increase 
in securities / percentage in accordance with / based 
on Sr. No. 3, 4 & 5 above

PKR 7.89

Not Applicable

1 INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES



165 Passion for Performance

S.No Description Information

10 Financial position, including main items of balance
 sheet and profit and loss account of the associated
 company or associated undertaking on the basis of
 its latest financial statements
 

 

11 Break-up value of securities intended to be acquired
 on the basis of the latest audited financial statements

12 Earning per share of the associated company or
 associated undertaking for the last three years
 

13 Sources of fund from which securities will be
 acquired

14 Where the securities are intended to be acquired
 using borrowed funds
(i) Justification for investment through borrowings

(ii) Detail of guarantees and assets pledged for
 obtaining such funds

15 Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered
 into with its associated company or associated
 undertaking with regards to the proposed investment

16 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
 majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in
 the associated company or associated undertaking
 or the transaction under consideration

17 Any other important details necessary for the
 members to understand the transaction

18 In case of investment in securities of a project of an
 associated company or associated undertaking that
 has not commenced operations, in addition to the
 information referred to above, the following further
 information, is required, namely

(i) Description of the project and its history since
 conceptualization
(ii) Starting and expected dated of completion of work
(iii) Time by which such project shall become
 commercially operational
(iv) Expected time by which the project shall start paying
 return on investment

19 In case an investment in associated company has
 already been made, the performance review of such
 investment including complete information / 
 justifiction for any impairments / write-offs

Total Equity, Total assets and total liability amounting 
to PKR 177 million, PKR 490 million and PKR 313 
million respectively.
Gross loss, Loss before tax and Loss after tax
amounting to PKR 12.99 million, PKR 110 million and
PKR 98.77 million respectvely"

 PKR 7.09 

2020: PKR (3.95)
2019: PKR (1.19)
2018: PKR 0.10

From company's own available liquidity and credit 
lines

The Company foresee the return on this strategic 
investment higher than the borrowing cost
Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over assets 
of the Company, if and where needed.

There is no agreement as this is a Strategic Invest-
ment

Directors of the Company have no interest in the  
investee Company except in their capacity as Sponsor 
/ Director / Share holder of Investee Company.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

The sale over the year ended June 30, 2020 decreased 
significantly due to multiple reasons. Firstly, during the year 
an exclusive private sector development project was 
successfully completed, however the major revenue from it 
was earned during the previous year; secondly, the current 
financial year started under a stabilization programme, 
resulting in high interest rates and an attempt to document 
the economy, which resulted in an overall slowdown in real 
estate sector.
Furthermore, in the last quarter the operations and sales 
were severely affected due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and 
imposition of lock-downs. However, the construction package 
announced by the Federal Government will provide some 
stimulus for the real sector which will have a trickledown 
effect on our industry/company, therefore, it is expected that 
the profit of the Company will increase. Consequently the 
investment is expected to add value to AHL shareholders. 
Performance of SMCPL can be referred in Point 10 to 12 
above.
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S.No Description Information

1 Name of the associated company or associated
 undertakingalong with criteria based on which the
 associated relationship is established
 
2 Purpose, benefits and period of investment
 
 
 
3 Maximum amount of investment
 
 
 

4 Maximum price at which securities will be acquired
 
 
5 Maximum number of securities to be acquired
 
 
6 In case the purchase price is higher than market
 value in case of listed securities and fair value in
 case of unlisted securities, justification thereof
 
7 Number of securities and percentage thereof held
 before and after the proposed investment
 
 
 

8 In case of investment in listed securities, average of
 the preceding twelve weekly average price of the
 security intended to be acquired
 
9 In case of investment in unlisted securities, fair
 market value of such securities determined in terms
 of regulation 6 (1)
 
10 Financial position, including main items of balance
 sheet and profit and loss account of the associated
 company or associated undertaking on the basis of
 its latest financial statements
 
 
 

11 Break-up value of securities intended to be acquired
 on the basis of the latest audited financial   
 statements
 
12 Earning per share of the associated company or
 associated undertaking for the last three years
 
 
13 Sources of fund from which securities will be
 acquired

POWER CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
An associated undertaking due to investments by
the holding Company

For the benefit of the Company and to earn better
returns in the long run on strategic investment by
capturing the opportunities on the right time

Fresh limit of PKR 1000 million and Unutilized limit of 
PKR 106.95 million is requested for approval. This is 
in addition to Investment at cost of PKR 143.05 million 
already made upto 30 June, 2021.

At par/premium/market/offered/negotiated price
prevailing on the date of transaction/investment

No of securities purchasable under approved limit in
accordance with / based on Sr. Nos. 3 & 4 above

Not Applicable

Before: 6.26 million shares held in the Company as on 
30 June, 2021 being 0.59% holding. After: Increase in 
securities / percentage in accordance with / based on 
Sr. No. 3, 4 & 5 above

PKR 9.47

Not Applicable

Total Equity, Total assets and total liability amounting 
to PKR 9,228 million, PKR 45,194  million and PKR 
35,967 million respectively.
Gross loss, Loss before tax and Loss after tax
amounting to PKR 97 million, PKR 3,959 million and
PKR 3,616 million respectvely"

PKR 8.68

2020: PKR (3.4)
2019: PKR 0.55
2018: PKR 0.32

From company's own available liquidity and credit 
lines

2   INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES
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S.No Description Information

14 Where the securities are intended to be acquired
 using borrowed funds
(i) Justification for investment through borrowings

(ii) Detail of guarantees and assets pledged for
 obtaining such funds
 

15 Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered
 into with its associated company or associated
 undertaking with regards to the proposed
 investment
 
16 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
 majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in
 the associated company or associated undertaking
 or the transaction under consideration
 
17 Any other important details necessary for the
 members to understand the transaction
 
18 In case of investment in securities of a project of an
 associated company or associated undertaking that
 has not commenced operations, in addition to the
 information referred to above, the following further
 information, is required, namely
 
(i) Description of the project and its history since
 conceptualization
(ii) Starting and expected dated of completion of work
(iii) Time by which such project shall become
 commercially operational
(iv) Expected time by which the project shall start   
 paying return on investment
 
19 In case an investment in associated company has
 already been made, the performance review of such
 investment including complete information /   
 justification for any impairments / write-offs

The Company foresee the return on this strategic 
investment higher than the borrowing cost
Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over assets 
of the Company, if and where needed.

There is no agreement as this is a Strategic Invest-
ment

Directors of the Company have no interest in the 
investee Company except in their capacity as Sponsor 
/ Director / Shareholder of Investee Company.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company gross 
sales touched Rs. 8,193 million. Sales of Rs. 1,565 
million, being part of the trial production, have been 
classified in Capital Work in Progress. Overall gross 
sales revenue of your Company increased by 16 % as 
compared to last year whereas net sales revenue 
increased by 7 % in line with the improved sales volume 
during the period primarily due to surge in exports on the 
back of superior quality production of the Company. The 
Earnings per Share dropped during the year (loss of Rs. 
3.40) as compared to earnings of Rs. 0.55 per share in 
the comparative year) The Company’s declining 
profitability was mainly attributable to higher debt burden 
on account of mark-up expenses accrued on Line III 
debts. The Government has incentivized the construction 
sector by legislating a package announced by the Prime 
Minister to increase the cement consumption in the 
country in the wake of the coronavirus pandemic.  The 
government has approved an industry status for the 
construction sector after announcing establishment of a 
Construction Industry Development Board. If effectively 
implemented, this construction policy would play a 
significant role in paving the way for the government’s 
promise of providing 10 million employment opportunities 
and 5 million houses to the nation. Goverments initiative 
will have a positive impact of profitability of the Company. 
Consequently the investment is expected to add value to 
AHL shareholders. Performance of PCL can be referred 
in Point 10 to 12 above.
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S.No Description Information

1 Name of the associated company or associated
 undertakingalong with criteria based on which the
 associated relationship is established
 

2 Purpose, benefits and period of investment
 
 
 
3 Maximum amount of investment
  
 

4 Maximum price at which securities will be acquired
 
 
5 Maximum number of securities to be acquired
 
 
6 In case the purchase price is higher than market
 value in case of listed securities and fair value in
 case of unlisted securities, justification thereof
 
7 Number of securities and percentage thereof held
 before and after the proposed investment
 

8 In case of investment in listed securities, average of
 the preceding twelve weekly average price of the
 security intended to be acquired
 
9 In case of investment in unlisted securities, fair
 market value of such securities determined in terms
 of regulation 6 (1)
 
10 Financial position, including main items of balance
 sheet and profit and loss account of the associated
 company or associated undertaking on the basis of
 its latest financial statements
 
 

11 Break-up value of securities intended to be acquired
 on the basis of the latest audited financial statements
 
12 Earning per share of the associated company or
 associated undertaking for the last three years
 
 
13 Sources of fund from which securities will be
 acquired

For the benefit of the Company and to earn better
returns in the long run on strategic investment by
capturing the opportunities on the right time

Fresh limit of PKR 1,000 million is requested for 
approval. This is in addition to Investment at cost of 
PKR 250 million already made upto 30 June, 2021.

At par/premium/market/offered/negotiated price
prevailing on the date of transaction/investment

No of securities purchasable under approved limit in
accordance with / based on Sr. Nos. 3 & 4 above

Not Applicable

Before: 7.5 million (ordinary) & 0.12 million (prefrence) 
shares held in the Company as on 30 June, 2021, 
being 0.99% holding. After: Increase in securities / 
percentage in accordance with / based on Sr. No. 3, 4 
& 5 above

PKR 19.62

Not Applicable

Total Equity, Total assets and total liability amounting 
to PKR 8,097 million, PKR 34,509 million and PKR 
26,411 million respectively.
Gross profit, Loss before tax and Loss after tax 
amounting to PKR 2,366 million, PKR (1,343) million 
and PKR 617 million respectvely"

PKR 9.96

2020: PKR (0.89)
2019: PKR 0.26
2018: PKR 1.57

From company's own available liquidity and credit 
lines

Aisha Steel Mills Limited
An associated undertaking due to investments by
the holding Company

INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES3



169 Passion for Performance

S.No Description Information

14 Where the securities are intended to be acquired
 using borrowed funds
(i) Justification for investment through borrowings

(ii) Detail of guarantees and assets pledged for
 obtaining such funds
 
15 Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered
 into with its associated company or associated
 undertaking with regards to the proposed
 investment
 
16 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
 majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in
 the associated company or associated undertaking
 or the transaction under consideration
 
17 Any other important details necessary for the
 members to understand the transaction
 
18 In case of investment in securities of a project of an
 associated company or associated undertaking that
 has not commenced operations, in addition to the
 information referred to above, the following further
 information, is required, namely
 
(i) Description of the project and its history since
 conceptualization
(ii) Starting and expected dated of completion of work
(iii) Time by which such project shall become
 commercially operational
(iv) Expected time by which the project shall start   
 paying return on investment
 
19 In case an investment in associated company has
 already been made, the performance review of such
 investment including complete information /   
 justification for any impairments / write-offs

The Company foresee the return on this strategic 
investment higher than the borrowing cost.
Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over assets 
of the Company, if and where needed.

There is no agreement as this is a Strategic Invest-
ment

Directors of the Company have no interest in the 
investee Company except in their capacity as Sponsor 
/ Director / Shareholder of Investee Company.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

FY20 saw some extra ordinary developments that not 
only affected the current global business, but also will 
leave its mark for foreseeable future. It comprised of 
crises and challenges both at international and
local front. Locally ASL witnessed application of tight 
monetary and fiscal policies to counter the rising 
inflation, sharp devaluation, and depleting current 
account balance, with re-entry into the IMF program l
leading to major macroeconomic adjustments. Interest 
rates during the period July 2019 to February 2020 
were as high as 13.25%. The PKR exchange rate 
vis-à-vis the USD depreciated substantially and the
growth stalled. Although some signs of economic 
recovery emerged towards the end of the calendar 
year, but they were cut short by the emergence of 
COVID-19 pandemic. Moving forward the outlook of 
the business of the Company looks healthy, and will 
further strengthen with continuity of business-friendly 
policies of the government. Consequently the 
investment is expected to add value to AHL share-
holders. Performance of ASL can be referred in Point 
10 to 12 above.
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S.No Description Information

4 

1 Name of the associated company or associated
 undertakingalong with criteria based on which the
 associated relationship is established
 

2 Purpose, benefits and period of investment
 
 
 

3 Maximum amount of investment

 

4 Maximum price at which securities will be acquired
 
 
5 Maximum number of securities to be acquired
 
 
6 In case the purchase price is higher than market
 value in case of listed securities and fair value in
 case of unlisted securities, justification thereof
 
7 Number of securities and percentage thereof held
 before and after the proposed investment
 
 
 
8 In case of investment in listed securities, average of
 the preceding twelve weekly average price of the
 security intended to be acquired
 
9 In case of investment in unlisted securities, fair
 market value of such securities determined in terms
 of regulation 6 (1)
 
10 Financial position, including main items of balance
 sheet and profit and loss account of the associated
 company or associated undertaking on the basis of
 its latest financial statements
 
 
 
11 Break-up value of securities intended to be acquired
 on the basis of the latest audited financial statements
 
12 Earning per share of the associated company or
 associated undertaking for the last three years
 
 
13 Sources of fund from which securities will be
 acquired

 

JAVEDAN CORPORATION LIMITED
An associated undertaking due to investments by
the holding Company

For the benefit of the Company and to earn better
returns in the long run on strategic investment by
capturing the opportunities on the right time

Fresh limit of PKR 1,000 million is requested for approv-
al.This is in addition to Investment at cost of PKR 250 
million already made upto 30 June, 2021.

At par/premium/market/offered/negotiated price
prevailing on the date of transaction/investment

No of securities purchasable under approved limit in
accordance with / based on Sr. Nos. 3 & 4 above

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

After: Increase in securities / percentage in accordance
with / based on Sr. No. 3, 4 & 5 above

PKR 26.52

Not Applicable

Total Equity, Total assets and total liability amounting to
PKR 17,523 million, PKR 26,155 million and PKR 8,632 
million respectively.
Gross profit, (Loss) / Profit before tax and Profit after tax
amounting to PKR 912 million, PKR 371 million and
PKR 209 million respectvely"

PKR 55.21

2020: PKR 0.66
2019: PKR 1.83
2018: PKR 3.10

From company's own available liquidity and credit lines

INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES
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S.No Description Information

14 Where the securities are intended to be acquired
 using borrowed funds
(i) Justification for investment through borrowings

(ii) Detail of guarantees and assets pledged for
 obtaining such funds
 

15 Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered
 into with its associated company or associated
 undertaking with regards to the proposed
 investment
 
16 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
 majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in
 the associated company or associated undertaking
 or the transaction under consideration
 

17 Any other important details necessary for the
 members to understand the transaction
 
18 In case of investment in securities of a project of an
 associated company or associated undertaking that
 has not commenced operations, in addition to the
 information referred to above, the following further
 information, is required, namely
 
(i) Description of the project and its history since
 conceptualization
(ii) Starting and expected dated of completion of work
(iii) Time by which such project shall become
 commercially operational
(iv) Expected time by which the project shall start   
 paying return on investment
 
19 In case an investment in associated company has
 already been made, the performance review of such
 investment including complete information /   
 justification for any impairments / write-offs

The Company foresee the return on this strategic 
investment higher than the borrowing cost
Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over assets 
of the Company, if and where needed.

There is no agreement as this is a Strategic Invest-
ment

Directors of the Company have no interest in the 
investee Company except in their capacity as Sponsor 
/ Director / Shareholder of Investee Company.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

During the financial year 2020, JCL recorded sale of 
PKR 1,643 million as compared to PKR 1,899 million 
in the corresponding period last year. The Cost of 
sales for the period was recorded at PKR 708 million
as compared to PKR 772 million in the corresponding 
period. The gross profit for the year declined by 17% 
amounting to PKR 191 million. The profitability over 
the period has declined mainly on account of deficit of 
PKR 238 million recognised on development cost 
incurred and development cost recovered from 
allottees of Phase 1 and increase in finance cost. For 
Real Estate Sector the announced construction 
package by the Federal Government should provide 
some stimulus to the sector to restore normalcy earlier 
than, otherwise, expected. It is important to note that 
the construction package by the Federal Government 
has been backed up by necessary changes required 
at Provincial level in terms of provincial level taxes and 
duties Consequently the investment is expected to 
add value to AHL shareholders. Performance of JCL 
can be referred in Point 10 to 12 above.
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S.No Description Information

1 
 

1 Name of the associated company or associated
 undertaking along with criteria based on which the
 associated relationship is established
 

2 Amount of loans or advances
 
 
 
 
 
 
3 Purpose of loans or advances and benefits likely to
 accrue to the investing company and its members
 from such loans or advances
 
4 In case any loan has already been granted to the
 said associated company or associated
 undertaking, the complete details thereof
 
5 In case an investment in associated company has
 already been made, the performance review of such
 investment including complete information / justification
 for any impairments / write-offs
 
6 Financial position, including main items of balance
 sheet and profit and loss account of the associated
 company or associated undertaking on the basis of
 its latest financial statements
 
 
 
7 Average borrowing cost of the investing company or
 in case of absence of borrowing the Karachi Inter
 Bank Offered Rate for the relevant period
 
8 Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or commission
 etc. to be charged
 
9 Sources of funds from where loans or advances will
 be given
 
10 Where loans or advances are being granted using
 borrowed funds
 
(i) Justification for granting loan or advance out of
 borrowed funds
(ii) Detail of guarantees / assets pledged for obtaining
 such funds, if any
(iii) Repayment schedules of borrowing of the investing
 company
 
11 Particulars of collateral security to be obtained
 against loan to the borrowing company or
 undertaking, if any

SAFEMIX CONCRETE PRODUCTS LIMITED
An associated undertaking due to investment by the
holding Company

Previously sanctioned unutilized limit of PKR 250 million 
is requested for renewal. 

Above facilities will be in the nature of running finance for
a period of one year and shall be renewable in next 
general meeting for further period of one year.

To support the functionality , operations and growth of
the associate.

During 2020-21, no loan was extended to the associate.

During 2020-21, no loan was extended to the associate.

Total Equity, Total assets and total liability amounting to
PKR 177 million, PKR 490 million and PKR 313  million 
respectively.
Gross loss, Loss before tax and Loss after tax
amounting to PKR 12.99 million, PKR 110 million and
PKR 98.77 million respectvely"

Average borrowing cost of the investing Company 
ranges from 1 month KIBOR + 0.5% to 1.0% , 3 month 
KIBOR + 0.50% to 1.5% in 2020 - 2021.

Higher than the Companys' prevalent average borrowing
cost.

From Company's own available liquidity and credit lines

To support the functionality, operations and growth of the
associate. 
Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over assets of 
the Company, if and where needed. 
Obtained facilities have different maturity dates upto May 
31, 2022.

Will be decided with mutual consent at the time of
extending the loan.

LOANS AND ADVANCES
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S.No Description Information

12 If the loans or advances carry conversion feature  
 i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact along  
 with complete detail including conversion formula,
 circumstances in which the conversion may take
 place and the time when the conversion may be  
 exercisable
 
13 Repayment schedule and terms of loans or
 advances to be given to the investee company
 
 
14 Salient features of all agreements entered or to be
 entered with its associated company or associated
 undertaking with regards to proposed investment
 
15 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
 majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in
 the associated company or associated undertaking
 or the transaction under consideration
 
16 Any other important details necessary for the
 members to understand the transaction
 
17 In case of investment in a project of an associated
 company or associated undertaking that has not
 commenced operations, in addition to the
 information referred to above, the following further
 information is required, namely
 
(i) A description of the project and its history since
 conceptualization
(ii) Start date and expected date of completion
(iii) Time by which such project shall become
 commercially operational
(iv) Expected return on total capital employed in the
 project
(v) Funds invested or to be invested by the promoters
 distinguishing between cash and non-cash amounts

Not Applicable

Above facilities will be in the nature of running finance 
for a period of one year and shall be renewable in
next general meeting for further period of one year.

Not Applicable

Directors of the Company have no interest in the 
investee Company except in their capacity as Sponsor 
/ Director / Shareholder of Investee Company.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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S.No Description Information

2 
 
1 Name of the associated company or associated
 undertaking along with criteria based on which the
 associated relationship is established
 

2 Amount of loans or advances
 
 
 
 
 
3 Purpose of loans or advances and benefits likely to
 accrue to the investing company and its members
 from such loans or advances
 
4 In case any loan has already been granted to the
 said associated company or associated
 undertaking, the complete details thereof
 
5 In case an investment in associated company has
 already been made, the performance review of such
 investment including complete information / justification
 for any impairments / write-offs
 
6 Financial position, including main items of balance
 sheet and profit and loss account of the associated
 company or associated undertaking on the basis of
 its latest financial statements
 
 
 
7 Average borrowing cost of the investing company or
 in case of absence of borrowing the Karachi Inter
 Bank Offered Rate for the relevant period
 
8 Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or commission
 etc. to be charged
 
9 Sources of funds from where loans or advances will
 be given
 
10 Where loans or advances are being granted using
 borrowed funds
 
(i) Justification for granting loan or advance out of
 borrowed funds
(ii) Detail of guarantees / assets pledged for obtaining
 such funds, if any
(iii) Repayment schedules of borrowing of the investing
 company
 
11 Particulars of collateral security to be obtained
 against loan to the borrowing company or
 undertaking, if any

ARIF HABIB CORPORATION LIMITED
An associated undertaking due to Parent Comapny.

Previously sanctioned unutilized limit of PKR 1,500 
million is requested for renewal.  
Above facilities will be in the nature of running finance for 
a period of one year and shall be renewable in next 
general meeting for further period of one year.

To support the functionality , operations and growth of
the associate.

During 2020-21, no loan was extended to the associate.

During 2020-21, no loan was extended to the associate.

Total Equity, Total assets and total liability amounting to
PKR 18,103 million, PKR 18,978 million and PKR 875 
million respectively.
EBITDA, Loss before tax and Loss after tax
amounting to PKR (246) million, PKR (442) million and
PKR (569) million respectvely"

Average borrowing cost of the investing Company 
ranges from 1 month KIBOR + 0.5% to 1.0% , 3 month 
KIBOR + 0.50% to 1.5% in 2020 - 2021.

Higher than the Companys' prevalent average borrowing
cost.

From Company's own available liquidity and credit lines

To support the functionality, operations and growth of the
associate. 
Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over assets of 
the Company, if and where needed. 
Obtained facilities have different maturity dates upto May 
31, 2022.

Will be decided with mutual consent at the time of 
extending the loan.

LOANS AND ADVANCES
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S.No Description Information

12 If the loans or advances carry conversion feature  
 i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact along  
 with complete detail including conversion formula,
 circumstances in which the conversion may take
 place and the time when the conversion may be
 exercisable
 
13 Repayment schedule and terms of loans or
 advances to be given to the investee company
 
 
14 Salient features of all agreements entered or to be
 entered with its associated company or associated
 undertaking with regards to proposed investment
 
15 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
 majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in
 the associated company or associated undertaking
 or the transaction under consideration
 
16 Any other important details necessary for the
 members to understand the transaction
 
17 In case of investment in a project of an associated
 company or associated undertaking that has not
 commenced operations, in addition to the
 information referred to above, the following further
 information is required, namely
 
(i) A description of the project and its history since
 conceptualization
(ii) Start date and expected date of completion
(iii) Time by which such project shall become
 commercially operational
(iv) Expected return on total capital employed in the
 project
(v) Funds invested or to be invested by the promoters
 distinguishing between cash and non-cash amounts

Not Applicable

Above facilities will be in the nature of running finance 
for a period of one year and shall be renewable in
next general meeting for further period of one year.

Not Applicable

Directors of the Company have no interest in the 
investee Company except in their capacity as Sponsor 
/ Director / Shareholder of Investee Company.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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S.No Description Information

3 
  
1 Name of the associated company or associated
 undertaking along with criteria based on which the
 associated relationship is established
 
2 Amount of loans or advances
 
 
 
 
 

3 Purpose of loans or advances and benefits likely to
 accrue to the investing company and its members
 from such loans or advances
 
4 In case any loan has already been granted to the
 said associated company or associated undertaking,  
 the complete details thereof
 
5 In case an investment in associated company has
 already been made, the performance review of such
 investment including complete information / justification
 for any impairments / write-offs
 
6 Financial position, including main items of balance
 sheet and profit and loss account of the associated
 company or associated undertaking on the basis of
 its latest financial statements
 
 
 
7 Average borrowing cost of the investing company or
 in case of absence of borrowing the Karachi Inter
 Bank Offered Rate for the relevant period
 
8 Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or commission
 etc. to be charged
 
9 Sources of funds from where loans or advances will
 be given
 
10 Where loans or advances are being granted using
 borrowed funds
 
(i) Justification for granting loan or advance out of
 borrowed funds
(ii) Detail of guarantees / assets pledged for obtaining
 such funds, if any
(iii) Repayment schedules of borrowing of the investing
 company
 
11 Particulars of collateral security to be obtained against  
 loan to the borrowing company or undertaking, f any

POWER CEMENT LIMITED
An associated undertaking due to investment by the
holding Company

Fresh limit of PKR 500 million is requested for approval. 
This is in adition to previously sanctioned unutilized limit of 
PKR 500 million is requested for renewal. Above facilities 
will be in the nature of running finance for a period of one 
year and shall be renewable in next general meeting for 
further period of one year.

To support the functionality , operations and growth of the 
associate.

During 2020-21, no loan was extended to the associate.

During 2020-21, no loan was extended to the associate.

Total Equity, Total assets and total liability amounting to
PKR 9,228 million, PKR 45,194  million and PKR 35,967 
million respectively.
Gross loss, Loss before tax and Loss after tax
amounting to PKR 97 million, PKR 3,959 million and
PKR 3,616 million respectvely"

Average borrowing cost of the investing Company ranges 
from 1 month KIBOR + 0.5% to 1.0% , 3 month KIBOR + 
0.50% to 1.5% in 2020 - 2021.

Higher than the Companys' prevalent average borrowing
cost.

From Company's own available liquidity and credit lines

To support the functionality, operations and growth of the
associate.
Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over assets of 
the Company, if and where needed. 
Obtained facilities have different maturity dates upto May 
31, 2022.

Will be decided with mutual consent at the time of 
extending the loan.

LOANS AND ADVANCES
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S.No Description Information

12 If the loans or advances carry conversion feature  
 i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact along  
 with complete detail including conversion formula,
 circumstances in which the conversion may take
 place and the time when the conversion may be
 exercisable
 
13 Repayment schedule and terms of loans or
 advances to be given to the investee company
 
 
14 Salient features of all agreements entered or to be
 entered with its associated company or associated
 undertaking with regards to proposed investment
 
15 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
 majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in
 the associated company or associated undertaking
 or the transaction under consideration
 
16 Any other important details necessary for the
 members to understand the transaction
 
17 In case of investment in a project of an associated
 company or associated undertaking that has not
 commenced operations, in addition to the
 information referred to above, the following further
 information is required, namely
 
(i) A description of the project and its history since
 conceptualization
(ii) Start date and expected date of completion
(iii) Time by which such project shall become
 commercially operational
(iv) Expected return on total capital employed in the
 project
(v) Funds invested or to be invested by the promoters
 distinguishing between cash and non-cash amounts

Not Applicable

Above facilities will be in the nature of running finance 
for a period of one year and shall be renewable in
next general meeting for further period of one year.

Not Applicable

Directors of the Company have no interest in the 
investee Company except in their capacity as Sponsor 
/ Director / Shareholder of Investee Company.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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S.No Description Information

4 
  
1 Name of the associated company or associated
 undertaking along with criteria based on which the
 associated relationship is established

 
2 Amount of loans or advances
 
 
 
 
 

3 Purpose of loans or advances and benefits likely to
 accrue to the investing company and its members
 from such loans or advances
 
4 In case any loan has already been granted to the
 said associated company or associated undertaking,  
 the complete details thereof
 
5 In case an investment in associated company has
 already been made, the performance review of such
 investment including complete information / justification
 for any impairments / write-offs
 
6 Financial position, including main items of balance
 sheet and profit and loss account of the associated
 company or associated undertaking on the basis of
 its latest financial statements
 
 

7 Average borrowing cost of the investing company or
 in case of absence of borrowing the Karachi Inter
 Bank Offered Rate for the relevant period
 
8 Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or commission
 etc. to be charged
 
9 Sources of funds from where loans or advances will
 be given
 
10 Where loans or advances are being granted using
 borrowed funds
 
(i) Justification for granting loan or advance out of
 borrowed funds
(ii) Detail of guarantees / assets pledged for obtaining
 such funds, if any
(iii) Repayment schedules of borrowing of the investing
 company
 

11 Particulars of collateral security to be obtained
 against loan to the borrowing company or
 undertaking, if any

Aisha Steel Mills Limited
An associated undertaking due to investment by the
holding Company

Fresh limit of PKR 500 million is requested for approval. 
This is in addition to previously sanctioned unutilized limit 
of PKR 500 million is requested for renewal. Above 
facilities will be in the nature of running finance for a period 
of one year and shall be renewable in next general 
meeting for further period of one year.

To support the functionality , operations and growth of
the associate.

During 2020-21, no loan was extended to the associate.

During 2020-21, no loan was extended to the associate.

Total Equity, Total assets and total liability amounting to 
PKR 8,097 million, PKR 34,509 million and PKR 26,411 
million respectively.
Gross profit, Loss before tax and Loss after tax amounting 
to PKR 2,366 million, PKR (1,343) million and PKR 617 
million respectvely"

Average borrowing cost of the investing Company ranges 
from 1 month KIBOR + 0.5% to 1.0% , 3 month KIBOR + 
0.50% to 1.5% in 2020 - 2021.

Higher than the Companys' prevalent average borrowing
cost.

From Company's own available liquidity and credit lines

To support the functionality, operations and growth of the
associate.
Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over assets of 
the Company, if and where needed.
Obtained facilities have different maturity dates upto May
31, 2022.

Will be decided with mutual consent at the time of
extending the loan.

LOANS AND ADVANCES
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S.No Description Information

12 If the loans or advances carry conversion feature  
 i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact along  
 with complete detail including conversion formula,
 circumstances in which the conversion may take
 place and the time when the conversion may be
 exercisable
 
13 Repayment schedule and terms of loans or
 advances to be given to the investee company
 
 
14 Salient features of all agreements entered or to be
 entered with its associated company or associated
 undertaking with regards to proposed investment
 
15 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
 majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in
 the associated company or associated undertaking
 or the transaction under consideration
 
16 Any other important details necessary for the
 members to understand the transaction
 
17 In case of investment in a project of an associated
 company or associated undertaking that has not
 commenced operations, in addition to the
 information referred to above, the following further
 information is required, namely
 
(i) A description of the project and its history since
 conceptualization
(ii) Start date and expected date of completion
(iii) Time by which such project shall become
 commercially operational
(iv) Expected return on total capital employed in the
 project
(v) Funds invested or to be invested by the promoters
 distinguishing between cash and non-cash amounts

Not Applicable

Above facilities will be in the nature of running finance 
for a period of one year and shall be renewable in
next general meeting for further period of one year.

Not Applicable

Directors of the Company have no interest in the 
investee Company except in their capacity as Sponsor 
/ Director / Shareholder of Investee Company.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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S.No Description Information

5 
  
1 Name of the associated company or associated
 undertaking along with criteria based on which the
 associated relationship is established
 
2 Amount of loans or advances
 
 
 
 
 

3 Purpose of loans or advances and benefits likely to
 accrue to the investing company and its members
 from such loans or advances
 
4 In case any loan has already been granted to the
 said associated company or associated undertaking,  
 the complete details thereof
 
5 In case an investment in associated company has
 already been made, the performance review of such
 investment including complete information / justification
 for any impairments / write-offs
 
6 Financial position, including main items of balance
 sheet and profit and loss account of the associated
 company or associated undertaking on the basis of
 its latest financial statements
 

7 Average borrowing cost of the investing company or
 in case of absence of borrowing the Karachi Inter
 Bank Offered Rate for the relevant period
 
8 Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or commission
 etc. to be charged
 
9 Sources of funds from where loans or advances will
 be given
 
10 Where loans or advances are being granted using
 borrowed funds
 
(i) Justification for granting loan or advance out of
 borrowed funds
(ii) Detail of guarantees / assets pledged for obtaining
 such funds, if any
(iii) Repayment schedules of borrowing of the investing
 company
 
11 Particulars of collateral security to be obtained
 against loan to the borrowing company or
 undertaking, if any

JAVEDAN CORPORATION LIMITED
An associated undertaking due to investment by the
holding Company

Fresh limit of PKR 500 million is requested for approval. 
This is in adition to previously sanctioned unutilized limit of 
PKR 500 million is requested for renewal. Above facilities 
will be in the nature of running finance for a period of one 
year and shall be renewable in next general meeting for 
further period of one year.

To support the functionality , operations and growth of
the associate.

During 2020-21, no loan was extended to the associate.

During 2020-21, no loan was extended to the associate.

Total Equity, Total assets and total liability amounting to 
PKR 17,523 million, PKR 26,155 million and PKR 8,632 
million respectively.
Gross profit, (Loss) / Profit before tax and Profit after tax 
amounting to PKR 912 million, PKR 371 million and PKR 
209 million respectvely"

Average borrowing cost of the investing Company ranges 
from 1 month KIBOR + 0.5% to 1.0% , 3 month KIBOR + 
0.50% to 1.5% in 2020 - 2021.

Higher than the Companys' prevalent average borrowing
cost.

From Company's own available liquidity and credit lines

To support the functionality, operations and growth of the
associate.
Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over assets of 
the Company, if and where needed. 
Obtained facilities have different maturity dates upto May 
31, 2022.

Will be decided with mutual consent at the time of
extending the loan.

LOANS AND ADVANCES
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S.No Description Information

12 If the loans or advances carry conversion feature  
 i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact along  
 with complete detail including conversion formula,
 circumstances in which the conversion may take
 place and the time when the conversion may be
 exercisable
 
13 Repayment schedule and terms of loans or
 advances to be given to the investee company
 
 
14 Salient features of all agreements entered or to be
 entered with its associated company or associated
 undertaking with regards to proposed investment
 
15 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
 majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in
 the associated company or associated undertaking
 or the transaction under consideration
 
16 Any other important details necessary for the
 members to understand the transaction
 
17 In case of investment in a project of an associated
 company or associated undertaking that has not
 commenced operations, in addition to the
 information referred to above, the following further
 information is required, namely
 
(i) A description of the project and its history since
 conceptualization
(ii) Start date and expected date of completion
(iii) Time by which such project shall become
 commercially operational
(iv) Expected return on total capital employed in the  
 project
(v) Funds invested or to be invested by the promoters
 distinguishing between cash and non-cash amounts

Not Applicable

Above facilities will be in the nature of running finance 
for a period of one year and shall be renewable in
next general meeting for further period of one year.

Not Applicable

Directors of the Company have no interest in the invest-
ee Company except in their capacity as Sponsor / 
Director / Shareholder of Investee Company.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, in compliance with Regulation 4(2) of Companies 
(Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2012, for decision to make 
investment under the authority of a resolution passed earlier pursuant to provisions of section 208 of the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed) is not implemented either fully or partially:
  
The Company in its previous general meetings had sought approvals under section 208 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 (repealed) for investments in the following Associated Companies and Associated Undertakings in which 
investment has not been made so far, either fully or partially. Approval of renewal of unutilised portion of equity 
investments and sanctioned limit of loans and advances is also hereby sought for the companies, in which directors 
of the company have no inertest except in their capacity as director/shareholder, as per following details :

ANNEXURE - C

1 Name of associated company / undertaking :     Arif Habib Corporation Limited

 S. No. Description Investment in Securities 
Loans / Advances 

and Corporate Gurantees

a)  total investment approved;
b)  amount of investment made to date;
c)  reasons for not having made complete investment so far 

where resolution required it to be implemented in 
specified time; and

 

d)  material change in financial statements of associated 
company  or associated undertaking since date of the 
resolution passed for approval of investment in such 
company :

i Earnings per share - basic & diluted
ii Net (Loss) / Profit 
iii Shareholders Equity
iv Total Assets
v Break-up value

 -
 -

 

2020 

(1.38)
 (569,875,093)

 18,103,036,343 
 18,978,026,120 

 44.33 

        
2019

 
(2.12)

 (963,841,051)
 19,877,951,283 
 26,708,568,580 

 43.81

2019
  

(2.12)
 (963,841,051)

 19,877,951,283 
 26,708,568,580 

 43.81 

2020
          

 (1.38)
 (569,875,093)

 18,103,036,343 
 18,978,026,120 

 44.33 

  1,500,000,000
 -

Facility is in the nature of 
Running Finance to be availed 
as and when needed in the 
interest of the shareholders

RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS 
REQUESTED FOR PORTION I.E. :  Unutilised  Sanctioned  1,500,000,000 -
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2 Name of associated company / undertaking :     Safe Mix Concrete Products Limited 

 S. No. Description Investment in Securities 
Loans / Advances 

and Corporate Gurantees
a)           total investment approved;
b)            amount of investment made to date;
c)            reasons for not having made complete investment so far                 
                whereresolution required it to be implemented in   
                specified  time; and

d)            material change in financial statementsof associated
                company or associated undertaking since date of the                      
                resolution passed for approval of investment in such                   
                company :
i Eanings per share
ii Net (Lose)/Profit 
iii Shareholders Equity
iv Total Assets
v Break-up value

Waiting for an appropriate time 
in the interest of the 
shareholders for complete 
utilisation

 (3.95)
 (98,777,041)
 177,356,035 
 490,062,787 

 7.09 

 (1.19)
 (29,771,054)
 188,148,433 
 608,474,409 

 7.53 

 (1.19)
 (29,771,054)
 188,148,433 
 608,474,409 

 7.53 

 (3.95)
 (98,777,041)
 177,356,035 
 490,062,787 

 7.09 

Facility is in the nature of 
running finance and 
availed as and when needed in 
the interest of the shareholders

RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS 
REQUESTED FOR PORTION I.E.:  Unutilised  Sanctioned  250,000,000  155,699,304 

3 Name of associated company / undertaking :     Power Cement Limited 

 S. No. Description Investment in Securities 
Loans / Advances 

and Corporate Gurantees

 

Waiting for an appropriate time 
in the interest of the 
shareholders for complete 
utilisation

Facility is in the nature of 
running finance and 
availed as and when needed in 
the interest of the shareholders

 250,000,000 
 94,300,696

   
250,000,000

-

 250,000,000

 143,048,035

   
500,000,000

-
a)           total investment approved;
b) amount of investment made to date;
c) reasons for not having made complete investment so far 

where resolution required it to be implemented in specified 
time; and" 

 

d) material change in financial statements of associated 
company or associated undertaking since date of the 
resolution passed for approval of investment in such 
company :

i Eanings per share
ii Net Profit 
iii Shareholders Equity
iv Total Assets
v Break-up value

2020 2019 2020 2019

 (3.40)
 (3,616,452,000)

 9,228,394,000 
 45,194,965,000 

 8.68 

 0.55 
 931,268,000 

 12,221,540,000 
 40,008,403,000 

 11.49 

 0.55 
 931,268,000 

 12,221,540,000 
 40,008,403,000 

 11.49 

 (3.40)
 (3,616,452,000)

 9,228,394,000 
 45,194,965,000 

 8.68 

2020 2019 2020 2019

RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS 
REQUESTED FOR PORTION I.E.:  Sanctioned  500,000,000  106,951,965  Unutilised 
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4 Name of associated company / undertaking :     Aisha Steel Mills Limited 

 S. No. Description Investment in Securities 
Loans / Advances 

and Corporate Gurantees
a)           total investment approved;
b)            amount of investment made to date;
c)             reasons for not having made complete investment so far  
 where resolution required it to be implemented in   
 specified time; and" 

d)            material change in financial statementsof associated
                company or associated undertaking since date of the                      
                resolution passed for approval of investment in such                   
                company:
 i Eanings per share - Basic
 ii Net (Lose)/Profit 
 iii Shareholders Equity
 iv Total Assets
 v Break-up value

Waiting for an appropriate time 
in the interest of the 
shareholders for complete 
utilisation

  (0.89)
 (616,573,000)
 8,097,437,000 

 34,509,399,000 
 9.96 

 0.26 
 253,698,000 

 8,746,828,000 
32,730,909,000 

 11.43 

 0.26 
 253,698,000  

8,746,828,000
 32,730,909,000 

 11.43 

 (0.89)
 (616,573,000)
 8,097,437,000 

34,509,399,000 
 9.96 

Facility is in the nature of 
running finance and 
availed as and when needed in 
the interest of the shareholders

RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS 
REQUESTED FOR PORTION I.E.:  Unutilised  Sanctioned 500,000,000 -

 Unutilised -

5 Name of associated company / undertaking :     Javedan Corporation Limited 

 S. No. Description Investment in Securities 
Loans / Advances 

and Corporate Gurantees

Waiting for an appropriate time 
in the interest of the 
shareholders for complete 
utilisation 

Facility is in the nature of 
running finance and 
availed as and when needed in 
the interest of the shareholders 

 250,000,000 
 250,000,000 

   
500,000,000

-

 250,000,000

 250,000,000

   
500,000,000

-
a)           total investment approved;
b) amount of investment made to date;
c) reasons for not having made complete investment so far 

where resolution required it to be implemented in specified 
time; and"

d) material change in financial statements of associated 
company or associated undertaking since date of the 
resolution passed for approval of investment in such 
company :

i Eanings per share - Basic
ii Net Profit 
iii Shareholders Equity
iv Total Assets
v Break-up value

2020 2019 2020 2019

 0.66 
 209,156,000 

 17,523,409,000 
 26,154,969,000 

 55.21 

 1.83 
 579,880,000 

 17,284,413,000 
 25,283,074,000 

 59.91 

  1.83 
 579,880,000 

 17,284,413,000 
 25,283,074,000 

 59.91 

 0.66 
 209,156,000 

 17,523,409,000 
 26,154,969,000 

 55.21 

2020 2019 2020 2019

RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS 
REQUESTED FOR PORTION I.E.:  Sanctioned  500,000,000 



Categories of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held   Percentage (%) 

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children 7  66,833   0.11 
   
Associated companies, undertakings and related parties 3  43,056,384   72.49 
   
NIT & ICP -  -     -   
   
Banks Development Financial Institutions, 
   Non Banking Financial Financial Institutions. 2  100,054   0.17 
   
Insurance Companies 2  226,920   0.38 
   
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 4  72,500   0.12 
   
General Public Foreign 6  39,500   0.07 
   
Foreign Companies -  -     -   
   
Others 47  3,315,528   5.58 
   
General Public Local 2849  12,522,281   21.08 
   
Total 2920  59,400,000   100.00 

CATEGORIES OF 
SHAREHOLDERS  As of JUNE 30, 2021 
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Categories of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held   Percentage (%) 

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children   
MUHAMMAD HAROON  1   1,557   0.00 
NIDA AHSAN  1   1,099   0.00 
SHARMIN SHAHID  1   1,099   0.00 
MOHSIN MADNI  1   500   0.00 
MUHAMMAD SHAHID ALI  1   878   0.00 
ZAFAR ALAM  1   61,100   0.10 
MUHAMMAD SOHAIL SALAT  1   600   0.00 
   
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties  3   43,056,384   72.49 
   
NIT & ICP  -     -     -   
   
Banks Development Financial Institutions, 
   Non Banking Financial Institutions.  2   100,054   0.17 
   
Insurance Companies  2   226,920   0.38 
   
Modarabas and Mutual Funds  4   72,500   0.12 
   
General Public   
a. Local  2,849   12,522,281   21.08 
b. Foreign  6   39,500   0.07 
Foreign Companies  -     -     -   
Others  47   3,315,528   5.58 

Totals   2,920   59,400,000   100.00 
   
   
Share holders holding 10% or more  Shares Held  Percentage 
   
M/S. ARIF HABIB CORPORATION LIMITED   41,245,884   69.44 
   

CATEGORIES OF 
SHAREHOLDERS  As of JUNE 30, 2021 
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# Of Shareholders Shareholdings' Slab Total Shares Held
 592 1 to 100 15,485
 513 101 to 500 142,376
 362 501 to 1000 276,650
 996 1001 to 5000 2,166,618
 182 5001 to 10000 1,360,247
 101 10001 to 15000 1,277,061
 43 15001 to 20000 781,014
 21 20001 to 25000 481,938
 18 25001 to 30000 503,919
 11 30001 to 35000 366,320
 8 35001 to 40000 293,897
 6 40001 to 45000 251,846
 15 45001 to 50000 734,713
 8 50001 to 55000 420,560
 3 55001 to 60000 173,920
 5 60001 to 65000 317,609
 1 65001 to 70000 68,000
 1 70001 to 75000 70,399
 4 75001 to 80000 319,197
 2 85001 to 90000 175,400
 1 95001 to 100000 100,000
 2 100001 to 105000 202,528
 1 110001 to 115000 113,000
 3 115001 to 120000 360,000
 2 125001 to 130000 252,000
 2 130001 to 135000 264,607
 1 135001 to 140000 140,000
 1 140001 to 145000 145,000
 1 155001 to 160000 160,000
 1 170001 to 175000 171,500
 1 175001 to 180000 180,000
 2 195001 to 200000 400,000
 2 200001 to 205000 404,700
 1 290001 to 295000 292,000
 1 295001 to 300000 300,000
 1 415001 to 420000 415,704
 1 425001 to 430000 428,500
 1 1810001 to 1815000 1,810,500
 1 1815001 to 1820000 1,816,908
 1 8245001 to 8250000 8,245,884
 1 32995001 to 33000000 33,000,000

 2920    59,400,000

CATEGORIES OF 
SHAREHOLDERS  As of JUNE 30, 2021 
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Name of Director

Mr. Zafar Alam
Ms. Sharmin Shahid
Ms. Nida Ahsan
Mr. Muhammad Haroon
Mr. Mohsin Madni
Mr. Muhammad Shahid Ali 
Mr. Muhammad Sohail Salat

Board Meeting

4
4
3
3
4
4
4

Audit Committee Meeting

N/ A
N/A
N/A
3
4

N/A
4

Name of Director

Mr. Zafar Alam
Mr. Muhammad Sohail Salat
Ms. Sharmin Shahid
Mr. Mohsin Madni
Mr. Muhammad Haroon
Ms. Nida Ahsan
Mr. Muhammad Shahid Ali
Mr. Muhammad Taha Siddiqui
Spouses
Minor Children

Designation

Chairman
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer & Company 
Secretary

Shares Bought

24,500
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Shares Sold

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Remarks

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
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Investement by RDA Clients
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A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his / her proxy who 
shall have such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a member.

Proxy shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her CNIC or original passport and bring folio number 
at the time of attending the meeting.

In order to be effective, the proxy forms must be received at the office of our Registrar M/s. Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited, Share Registrar Department, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S,M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-
Faisal, Karachi, not later than 48 hours before the meeting duly signed and stamped and witnessed by two 
persons with their signature, name, address and CNIC number given on the form.

In the case of individuals attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

In the case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney and attested copy of 
the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submitted along with proxy Form.

Form of Proxy
17th Annual General Meeting

The Company Secretary
Arif Habib Limited
Arif Habib Centre
23-M.T. Khan Road
Karachi

I/we ______________________________________________________ of ________________________________being a
member(s) of Arif Habib Limited holding ______________________________________________________ordinary shares 
as per CDC A/c. No. __________________________________________________________ hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss 
______________________________________________________________________________________of (full address)
___________________________________________________________________________________________ or failing 
him/herMr./Mrs./Miss_________________________________________________________________________________
of (full address) _____________________________________________________________________________________

(being member of the Company) as my/our Proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 
Sixteen Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on September 25, 2021 and /or any adjournment thereof.

Signed this _________________________________________ day of _____________________________________ 2021.

WITNESSES:

1.       Name :
 

 Address : 
 
 NIC No. :
 
 Signature : 

2.       Name : 
 

 Address :
 
 NIC No. : 
 
 Signature : 

NOTICE:

Signature on
Rs. 5/-
Revenue Stamp

_________________________________________

_________________________________________

_________________________________________

_________________________________________

_________________________________________

_________________________________________

_________________________________________

_________________________________________

01.

02.

03.

04.

05.



CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main

Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi.



17

99

48

23

12

252021



CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main

Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi.



Form of Proxy for E-Voting

Signature on
Rs. 5/-
Revenue Stamp

01.

02.

03.

04.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member and non-members as his / her proxy.

In order to be effective, the instructions/proxy forms must be received at the Company’s registered office
address at Arif Habib Centre, 23, M.T. Khan Road, Karachi, no later than 10 days before the meeting (i.e.
by the close of business on September 15, 2021), duly signed and stamped and witnessed by two persons
with their names, address, CNIC numbers and signatures. Further the same instructions/proxy scanned copy
may also be sent to our official email id evoting@arifhabibltd.com.

In the case of individuals attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall
be furnished with the proxy form.

In the case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney and attested
copy of the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submitted along with proxy Form.

17th Annual General Meeting

The Company Secretary
Arif Habib Limited
Arif Habib Centre
23-M.T. Khan Road
Karachi

I/we, ______________________________________________________ of ________________________________, holder
of __________________________________________________________ Share(s) as per Registered Folio No./CDC A/c. 
No._____________________hereby opt for e-voting through Intermediary and hereby consent to the appointment 
of Execution officer Mr./Mrs./Miss_____________________________________________________________________ as 
proxy and will exercise e-voting as per the Companies (E-Voting) Regulations, 2016 and hereby demand for poll 
for resolutions.

My secured email address is _________________________________, please send login details, password and 
electronic signature through email.

Signed this _________________________________________ day of _____________________________________2021.

WITNESSES:

1.  Name : : 

Address :

NIC No. :

Signature : 

2.  Name :

Address : 

NIC No. : 

Signature : 

NOTICE:



CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main

Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi.



17

2310

evoting@arifhabibltd.com

23

2016

12

152021



CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main

Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi.



UAN (92-21) 111-245-111 - www.arifhabibltd.com

ARIF HABIB CENTRE
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Fax No (92-21) 32416072; 32429653
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